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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYF

Dear Shareholders,

The global economy underwent continued post-crisis adjustments,
which can be demonstrated by remained slowdown in economic
recovery, sluggish market demand throughout the world and
unfavorable improvement in confidence of investors. With the
sustained fragile state in the real economy, ongoing slump
market demand and weaken effects of macro policies, the low
growth and high risk situation of the global economy may hardly
improve. Many developed economies remained weak in growth
and potential growth rate is low. Remained difference in outlook
between emerging market and developing economies, coupled
with rising geopolitical risks, resulted in sustained slump of the
global trade. Increasing uncertainties, such as the recent Brexit
event, in operation of the world economy, have stricken a serious
blow at business and consumer confidence. According to the
forecast of International Monetary Fund in July 2016, growth
rate of world economy in 2016 and 2017 will be 3.1% and 3.4%,
respectively, representing a decrease of 0.1 percentage point as
compared with the forecast in April 2016. However, it is worthy to
emphasize that International Monetary Fund’s forecast on economic
growth of China this year increased by 0.1 percentage point to
6.6%. Although China’s economic development has entered the
New Normal, its economic downward pressure remained high,
aggravating the difficulty of economic reform and transformation.
Under the guidance of the two major strategies, i.e. “One Belt
and One Road” and “supply-side reform”, Chinese enterprises
have been exploring “Going Global” initiative and have identified
a development path suitable for Chinese enterprises through
continuous upgrade.

As an engineering contracting company first going out in the PRC,
CMEC has been proactively expanding its overseas business and
has established years of profound market foundation along the “One
Belt and One Road” route and completed quality constructions
marking friendship and cooperation for many countries and regions,
obtaining a sound brand image and reputation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW FOR THE FIRST HALF OF
THE YEAR

Looking back on business for the first half of 2016, with new
market opportunities produced from the “One Belt and One
Road” construction, the Group put more efforts to research and
enhanced development in major regions and markets. Based on
“One Belt and One Road Project Repository (—#— &8 B E&)”, the
Group concentrated on supporting major projects according to its
business requirements. In the first half of 2016, the Group recorded
a revenue, gross profit and profit attributable to shareholders of
RMB8,393.5 million, RMB1,210.8 million and RMB800.4 million,
respectively.

In the eighth year since the breakout of international financial crisis,
which has sustained impact on the global economy, developed
economies showed slowing recovery. The momentum of European
economy growth has been hindered by issues such as refugee
flood and the Brexit. Emerging economies showed an overall weak
recovery, and growth prospect in Russia and Brazil was pessimistic
due to ongoing sluggish of oil price and contraction in industrial
output. As the world’s second largest economies, China may
benefit from the market opportunities brought by the “One Belt
and One Road” construction, pushing forward interconnection of
infrastructure and strengthening energy cooperation to establish
a bridge for international economic cooperation, which in turn
will offer good market opportunities for CMEC’s expansion into
overseas market.

To date, the Group’s engineering contracting projects covered more
than 48 countries throughout the world, which mainly distributed
in Asia, Africa, Europe and South America. During the Period,
international engineering contracting business as one of the Group’s
conventional core business, accounted for approximately 54.1%
of the Group’s total revenue for the Period; in particular, revenue
from the power sector accounted for approximately 60.8% of the
total revenue of the Group’s International Engineering Contracting
Business, whereas the gross profit of the power sector accounted
for approximately 72.8% of total gross profit of the international
engineering contracting business. Gross profit margin of the power
sector maintained at an industry-leading level of approximately
24.7%. In the first half of 2016, the Company has been adhering
to strict execution of projects; for projects in construction and
completed projects, the Company strictly controlled schedule,
management and safety of such projects and made quality
assurance and follow-up work after their completion.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYF

Warranty period of each of Brest Power Plant and Lukoml| Power
Plant in Belarus undertaken by the Company expired on March 14,
2016 and May 29, 2016, respectively. Final acceptance has been
completed smoothly and project performance certificates have been
issued by the respective owners. The project is also the largest
and most efficient gas steam combined cycle unit in operation
currently in Belarus, with generating capacity accounting for 10%
of total generating capacity of Belarus. In addition, the Sopladora
Hydropower Station in Ecuador, No.3 power plant expansion
project of Karaganda, Kazakhstan, Pakistan Thar coal field Il and
power station project, the Bafoussam Stadium and Limbe Stadium
in Cameroun, the renovation project on water supply and sewage
treatment system of Zimbabwe and the 90kV boucle power
transmission project in Dakar, Senegal have made good progress
and received accolades from all sides.

The Company has stepped up its efforts in the research on the
layout of major national strategies and put additional efforts to the
development of important fields and markets. Second, the Company
keeps improving system formulation and implementation during the
life cycle of engineering contracting and strengthening specialization
and refinement of project management. Third, the Company insists
on optimizing industry chains and allocates additional survey and
design resources to engineering contracting business by grasping
the opportunity brought by the incorporation of China Machinery
R&D and Jikan Research Institute to improve system integration
capacity and ability to provide customers with one-stop solution
packages. Fourth, the Company takes advantage of every favorable
condition to expand overseas financing channels to push forward
a batch of seller’s credit projects and conducts in-depth research
on PPP project models to diversify business models of engineering
contracting. Fifth, with its two regional subsidiaries in Singapore and
Dubai as pilot units, the Company takes full use of its advantages
in overseas finance, channels and procurement to accelerate
regionalization and localization of engineering contracting, And
lastly, the Company enhances its strategic cooperation with GE and
other major international companies, optimizing cooperate model
and process and giving full play to their respective advantages so
as to achieve win-win results.
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In the first half of 2016, weak global trading, ongoing depression
in commodities price and intensified geopolitics situation were
the main risks exposure to the global economy of 2016. The
increasingly fierce trade protectionism throughout the world has
further hindered the recovery of the global trading. According to the
latest statistics, in the first half of 2016, the total amount of import
and export in China was RMB11,133.5 billion, a decrease of 3.3%
year-on-year, of which the total export amounted to RMB6,402.7
billion, a drop of 2.1%; the total import amounted to RMB4,730.7
billion, a drop of 4.7%. Based on the above, foreign trade growth
of China was apparently slower than expectation and export may
continue to face downward pressure. However, China’s export to
some of the countries and regions along the route of “One Belt and
One Road” is better than the overall standard, and export of large
complete set and high value-added products maintains a positive
growth, reflecting stable and promising trend in trade.

Meanwhile, the Company actively explored new growth sources.
Eastern China business department of the Company kept on
promoting business of CMEC New Energy and “EasyTrade”
business. “EasyTrade” business of CMEC New Energy continued
to develop in the first half of the year with a total of import and
export amount of approximately over US$17 million involving
nearly 90 contracted services enterprises in various industries
such as chemical engineering, photovoltaic, textile and food.
The Company has also taken advantage of the cross-border
e-commerce platform to integrate trading business resources
through cooperating with large third-party platforms including
Alibaba, and has become one of Alibaba Group’s important partners
of import sources. Besides, the Company sought to discuss and
communicate with stakeholders about the development opportunity,
pattern and planning of cross-border e-commerce business through
holding a cross-border e-commerce business seminar and actively
participating in a number of meetings including the “Internet +”
seminar held by SINOMACH Group and Alibaba Group Global B2B
Ecological Summit. The Company won the award of “The Most
Influential Enterprise of Alibaba Group Import Sources in 2015
O EMEREEEENTEREAXENTE).
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYF

Other than the International Engineering Contracting Business
and the Trading Business, the Company also engaged in design
consulting services business. In recent years, some large-scale
equipment enterprises and other engineering enterprises entered
the design industry market, intensifying the competition of the
industry. Facing profound changes of industry market competition,
the Company has been actively integrating all aspects of resources.
With the incorporation of China Machinery R&D and Jikan Research
Institute, the Company began to build design consulting business
sector by strengthening investigations and design resource support
for engineering contracting business, so as to provide customers
with comprehensive turnkey solutions. In the Period, the two design
institutes of the design consulting sector still maintained their
growth despite the overall substantial downturn in the investigations
and design market.

As for Investment and Financing Business, the Company continued
to implement its strategy of “investment-driven EPC” in the first half
of the year, which has achieved initial results. The Thar coal-electric
integration project in Pakistan, as the first coal-electric integration
project under “China-Pakistan Economic Corridor”, has made
innovation in project financing pattern through establishing a
series of financing structure arrangements. The Company signed
the financing agreement at the end of 2015. On April 8, 2016, the
project financing was officially completed. This marks the formal
implementation of the first overseas investment of CMEC, achieving
a breakthrough in its investment business.

In addition, the Maldives 1.5MW photovoltaic power plant
investment project made steady progress in the first half of 2016.
The project is an exemplary project under the “Accelerating
Sustainable Private Investment in Renewable Energy” framework
of World Bank’s International Development Association. CMEC and
a Swiss subsidiary of Grass Solartechnik Schweiz SA, formed a
consortium and entered into the project power purchase agreement
and implementation agreement on October 15, 2015. Currently, the
project was in the early stage and pending the approval by local
government, and preparing for the commencement of construction.
This is CMEC'’s first overseas investment in new energy projects,
laying a sound foundation for CMEC’s future development in the
power market and similar projects in the Indian Ocean region.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMRE IRRAERAT

ARARGTERIRZABEBLESER
Sh BIUEERAAEANRRBER - OF
Ko —HABRBEXRHEMTREMCRE
FEARTITEDS > #BHTEHRFA
BAR - HERITEMSRFBBORAE
£ RAEBEARRMOER BETH
Br - MENBE RSB IRBEA - RAIFHRITER
AHRAEGIRGE - MR RRFAERE T
BEBEBHXE /EFREH—ET2
TR ERMEES - IR EEBRKRE
MEEBERBRBE VBN ANMEET
RAREARROMR KA EFER

ERMEXEBIE  RARSFLEFD
B Eh [ & W EEPC] BB R A B I
VIBRBRR - 1B AR E RRIR T B A K
E—fgEE -—CREIMEERRE Bt
HE - RRBBE-RIBELRLE &
EEMERN LEIR T A - WHE20155
EEETRERZ - 2016F4H8H » KB
R8N ZHEBEAERBEMME - &
FEECMECE —ERIIMREXBENE
i REERGERRE

B2 BRI SMWERBILIREER
th 20164 L¥ FiBP M - 2B E 21
RIBTEBREERS (MR FEFEER
AKREIERTH B RBMIER - B
CMECE ZR & A # K5 BT 803w = F
NEERE A BER2015F10815HEEE
BEEEHEMBERNTHE - BAT - %18
BENRAHZE MBS SRR - AF
TERAEEMRE - 5 R2CMECH & [EH 857
FHMNEETEB 0 ACMECKRFIHENE ¥
HMEENTISZUARFAEEDETERITFAE

it o



PROSPECTS

In the first half of the year, under a severe domestic and overseas
environment, the Company overcame difficulties and pressures
to maintain a steady and orderly development, making a good
start for the “13th Five-Year Plan”. In the second half of 2016, the
Company will make persistent efforts and steadily push ahead with
the implementation of its business plans with the aim to achieve its
annual targets and strengthen itself for further development.

First, the Company will enhance studies on the country’s “Going
Global”, “One Belt and One Road” and other strategies and
initiatives, and strengthen efforts to develop key areas and markets,
Upon identifying the “One Belt and One Road Project Repository (—
#—p& T8 B E)”, the Company will focus on key projects according
to business requirements and continue to enhance supervision over
the projects under construction to ensure project quality and safety.
The Company will also continue to strengthen the implementation of
rules and regulations on engineering contracting business and step
up its efforts on publicity and inspection to improve professional
project management.

Second, in respect of trading and service business, the Company
will continue to develop core products and businesses. Vigorous
efforts will be made to develop high-end forging and casting
goods, new energy and other core business, to actively explore
promising businesses and products to enrich core business
areas and to accelerate the transformation of trading business to
transform the Group from a product trader to a provider of product
value-adding services. In addition, the Company will explore the
synergetic mechanism between its trading and services segments
and engineering contracting business segment with the aim to
achieve a win-win situation for such segments by leveraging their
respective advantages and then develop overseas markets with
concerted efforts. The Company will cooperate with the internal
research institutes or equipment manufacturers of SINOMACH
Group to exploit each other’s advantages and convert scientific and
technological achievements into productive force. The Company
will strengthen cooperation with local governments to seek new
business opportunities in both domestic and international market.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYF

Meanwhile, the Company will strive to push forward the construction
of the regional trading centers in Southeast Asia and other regions
so as to carry out localized operations and further explore local
markets, in order to alleviate the adverse effects caused by the
downturn of international trade. The Company will exploit the
geographical advantages of its overseas subsidiaries to explore
new cooperation opportunities, new businesses, new products and
new markets. In a grim business environment, more efforts should
be put to tighten up the control over business risks by insisting on
strictly following the working mechanism of ex-ante reviews, interim
checks and ex-post evaluations to stay alert of any possible risks.

Lastly, In respect of the investment business, the Company will
create an investment business platform centered on China Everbest
Development International Limited (Hong Kong) and establish a
management system on investment business. Meanwhile, the
Company will learn from its experience in the implementation of the
Thar coal-electric integration project in Pakistan and discuss issues
occurring at different project phases with its strategic partners
(including SINOMACH Capital and other investment institutions)
so as to promote the sustainable development of its investment
business.

We believe the Company will make remarkable results and bring
returns to our shareholders in the second half of the year by virtue
of the “One Belt and One Road” and “Going Global” strategies and
established overseas business network and the sound risk control
system of the Company.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | would
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all
shareholders for their long term concern and support to CMEC,
and to senior management and all employees for their earnest work
and industrious efforts.

SUN Bai
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
September 20, 2016
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The Company was established in 1978 and was the first state-
owned industrial and trading enterprise in the PRC. The Company
is a subsidiary controlled by SINOMACH. The Company was listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on December 21, 2012.
As at June 30, 2016, the Company had a total of 908,270,000 H
Shares and 3,217,430,000 non-tradable Domestic Shares issued.
The Company has a primary focus on EPC projects and particular
expertise in the power sector, capable of providing one-stop
customized and integrated engineering contracting solutions and
services. The Company also conducts the Trading Business and
Service Business.

Prospects for Enterprise Development: Becoming the world’s
leading international engineering contractor and service provider
and transforming itself into a first class conglomerate in the world
through cutting-edge innovation and value creation.

Competitive Strengths: Brand reputation, operational model,
business network, professional team, business operation, financial
planning.

International Engineering Contracting Business: With over 30
years of experience in the International Engineering Contracting
Business, the Company is able to provide project owners with
one-stop customized and integrated turnkey solutions and services
to manage and implement engineering contracting projects,
especially in developing countries, and has undertaken engineering
contracting projects in more than 48 countries, primarily in Asia,
Africa, Europe and South America. Power, transportation and
telecommunications sectors are the Company’s Core Sectors. The
Company is also engaged in the non-Core Sectors, such as water
supply and treatment projects, building and construction projects,
manufacturing and processing plant projects and mining and
resources exploitation projects.

Trading Business: The Company conducts the Trading Business
through its sales and marketing network which covers over
150 countries and regions. The sales and marketing network is
established through years of international engineering contracting
and trading experiences and business transactions involving export
and import of products and services to and from these countries
and regions.

Service Business: The Company is engaged in a certain extent on
the Service Business, mainly including design consulting services,
logistics services, exhibition services, tendering agency services
and export-import agency services.

Investment and Financing Business: The Company is engaged
in overseas and domestic concession investments in engineering
contracting projects and associated financing business.
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Company Profile

NEIRIT

Corporate Structure: As at June

corporate structure was as follows:

30, 2016, the Company’s
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Unaudited Interim Results

The Board hereby announces the unaudited operating results
of the Group for the Period, together with the operating results
for the Corresponding Period in 2015 for comparison. For the
Period, the consolidated revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB8,393.5 million, representing a decrease of 17.2% over the
Corresponding Period in 2015; profit from operations amounted
to RMB530.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
41.4% over the Corresponding Period in 2015; profit attributable
to the Shareholders amounted to RMB800.4 million, representing
a decrease of 14.6% over the Corresponding Period in 2015; net
cash generated from operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB211.0 million while net cash generated from operating activities
was RMB2,112.1 million in the Corresponding Period in 2015.

REFETHHREE

EEeRNEMAEERAHENRESE
T L ER0IGFRPNELE
B OMELEER - RAHERE - AREES K
ANBARYS,393.5EH BT + 82015F A1 HA
WMA17.2% &R ABARES30988
7T R2015F R R A #941.4% + IRER JE
153% R B A R#800.4H B JT © 820154
AR 2 14.6% &2 EBEEMNREF
B AEARB211.08E L ' M20155F [
HMmEEEHEENRSFRAURARE
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Key Operating and Financial Data

EERERMBRE

1. Revenue
WA
Unit: RMB million
Eifir - ARBEHETT

8,393.5
1H2015 1H2016
20155 ¥4 20165 L¥ &

3. Basic Earnings per Share
BREXZEF
Unit: RMB
B ARE

0.23
1H2015 1H2016
20155 L4 20164F L¥ &

5. Backlog for the International Engineering
Contracting Business
BRIBREBEBRTHAEE
Unit: US$ million
B BEET

7,363.1

As at December 31, 2015 As at June 30, 2016
E£2015F12A31H HZ2016F6H308

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

FEIRMRE IRRAERAT

Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the
Company and Net Profit Margin
BRRAQRARRNFENER BN BER

Unit: RMB million
ﬁﬁz : AEMET—%FH Il Profit attributable to share

holders of the Company
53 AN D B R R H A

A Net profit margin
)RS

1H2015 1H2016
20154 F3¥ 4 2016 L¥F

Newly Effective Contract Value for the
International Engineering Contracting
Business
BERIBAREBEBNFTERNCRSHE
Unit: US$ million

B BEETT

737.0

1H2015 1H2016
20154 £3¥4 20165 E¥ 5
Signed Contracts Pending to be Effective
for the International Engineering
Contracting Business
B IRABEBNEENFLENER
As at June 30, 2016
#HZE201656H30H
Unit: US$ million
B BEETT

W Power sector
BHEERITHE

Total #85t | Transportation sector and
Telecommunications sector
11,662.1 FRERTELETE
BESES

Il Non-Core sectors

FEROITE



Financial Highlights

MBERE

For the six months ended June 30

B Z6H308 LA EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR FIT
(Restated)
(FEu)
Revenue N 8,393,529 10,135,120
Gross profit EF 1,210,845 1,592,639
Other revenue and E AU A K EAh
other income/(expenses), net WA /(%) F58 (5,831) 39,655
Operating expenses R (674,155) (725,765)
Profit from operations R T 530,859 906,529
Profit before taxation R EL BT A 1,063,603 1,250,087
Income tax Frig i (259,435) (312,894)
Profit for the period 7K HA RS A5 F 804,168 937,193
Total other comprehensive income Hira a8z (6,629) 1,437
Total comprehensive income for the period ZNHRRI 4R A U zs 48 %8 797,539 938,630
Profit attributable to: mARBR
— Shareholders of the Company — AR EIEE 800,360 937,077
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERR RS 3,808 116
Total comprehensive income AW RESEER
attributable to:
— Shareholders of the Company — RAE 793,562 939,012
— Non-controlling interests — JEE R 3,977 (382)
Basic and diluted earnings per share FRERNEEREF
(expressed in RMB per share) (LEBRAR®ETTEHE) 0.19 0.23
Total non-current assets R EELRRE 7,155,218 6,854,702
Total current assets MENVEERLT 35,752,928 37,097,851
Total assets BEBTE 42,908,146 43,952,553
Total non-current liabilities SEmMBBERRE 707,117 882,288
Total current liabilities U JN=REEE 28,210,329 28,523,824
Total liabilities aEaE 28,917,446 29,406,112
Equity attributable to Shareholders of RN A A% R E L RE S
the Company 13,941,168 14,500,886
Non-controlling interests JEPERE = 49,532 45,555
Total equity RS ERR 13,990,700 14,546,441
Total equity and liabilities =Kk EEBRE 42,908,146 43,952,553

Note:

The financial information of the Group for the six months ended June 30,
2015 and 2016 are set forth on pages 94 to 158, and is presented on the
basis set out in note 2.1 to the unaudited interim financial report.

Wizt

AN EE E£2015%F 20166 A30H 1F /< E A
WS E R BTN EIAE158E @ IRAK T+
BB S RE 2 AFTEEEMES -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER N

2

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In the first half of 2016, the domestic and international
environment remains generally anfractuous and bristled
with difficulties, displaying a sustained downward trend.
Internationally, the recovery of world economy failed to meet
expectations. Continued depression of foreign trade industry
and increasing of uncertain factors in the economy, such as the
recent Brexit, have increased uncertainty to world economy,
leading to a tougher global environment. Domestically, national
economy of China showed a fairly smooth, progressive and
favorable trend of development under the synergy released
by the in-depth advancing of innovation and macroeconomic
policy effects in the first half of 2016, while economic downturn
pressure remained high and economy trends differentiated, and
some profound contradictions left from history of China have
become serious, aggravating the difficulty of economic reform
and transformation. China is still suffering from the concussion
of economic restructuring and making it difficult to operate
real economy. According to preliminary calculation based on
comparable prices, the gross domestic product in China in
the first half of 2016 was RMB34,063.7 billion, representing a
6.7%' year-on-year increase. The growth rate decreased as
compared with the Corresponding Period in 2015.

() International Engineering Contracting Business

In the first half of 2016, the international engineering
contracting business in China achieved a turnover of
RMB431.33 billion (equivalent to US$66.05 billion), with
a 2.2% year-on-year decrease. The value of newly-
signed contracts reached RMB651.01 billion (equivalent
to US$99.69 billion), representing a 15% year-on-year
increase. Along the route of “One Belt and One Road”,
China has undertaken 3,080 overseas contracting projects
in 2016 in approximately 61 countries, with contracts
value amounting to US$51.45 billion, representing a 37%
year-on-year increase and 51.6%? of the value of China’s
newly-signed contracts for overseas contracting projects
during that period.

Source: publication of National Bureau of Statistics of China (July 15,
2016)
Source: regular press conference of MOFCOM (July 19, 2016)

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMRE IRRAERAT

ITERE

2016F ¥ FRHNINNIRIZEHEEEIE
MERE - RERZ - TTBRAIRBER
B HEERFEREE  HAKEEHT
RIEED - BHEERK - W ALEE
THETHEE EREL N - s HR s
BB BEE - 3E00 Tt RASE BT
THEEM - HNEPIRIBLLERER 8 o 1L
MR - 20165 E¥F » HEEN
BRI R A HE 3 A0 72 BB CSR AR e T
BRORRERT  BREEBERISTT
BEYIE - BYREE BPAINE
RREZ . BB TITEDNATK
EESDADL BARBERN
REXRTEOE  NEEANTKRE
5 BERLEETERRYS  &#
AENEREERE VIPRE -
2016 F E¥FHBEEANEEBEBEBAR
#340,63718 L - IE A LLERET & -
A b 1% :6.7%" + 12 18 B20155 A &
BFATTEE -

(- BRI REREER

2016F L 4F » HEEINEET
BEBTHE EBARK4L,313.3
& 7t (T 46605 X JT) ' H
Lk TBE2.2%  EERBEAR
#6,510.118 7t (#1 £996.918 %
JT) 0 R R15% - P E M
=% —] HEM61EEX
MR2016F F & LN R T8
B & [F3,0801) « & [F 48 58 & 3
51458 %t AL IBR3I7T%
HEBEBEEINEBTIREHES
[FIZEH51.6%2 ©

HEAROR - BRFE B EM (201657 A
158)

HEAR - BmHEHBOTHEESE (2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Currently, “Going Global” business is in the special period

of the junction of three stages, i.e., initial development

stage, rapidly growing stage and transitional and upgrade

stage, which is also the crucial period of stepping into

new development stage for international engineering

contracting industry of China. The development of this

industry is confronted with many opportunities and

challenges:

1.

Slow recovery of world economy

In the first half of 2016, the aftershock of the
global financial crisis sustained, turbulence in global
capital market and growth momentum of developed
economies have weakened and emerging market
economies and low income countries continued to
suffer from growing resistance. The impact brought
along by Brexit cannot be ignored, and protectionism
has been adopted due to low oil price and weak
global trade growth.

Since this year, international organizations have cut
their predictions on growth of 2016 global economy.
Among these organizations, World Bank lowered its
prediction on growth rate of 2016 global economy
to 2.9% in its report on Global Economic Outlook
published in January 2016, representing a decrease
of 0.4 percentage point as compared with its
prediction in June 2015; Organization for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD) lowered its
prediction on growth rate of 2016 global economy
to 3% in its latest report published in February
2016, representing a decrease of 0.3 percentage
point as compared with its prediction in November
2015; International Monetary Fund (IMF) lowered its

BEERWR DT

2R [EHRE] ZBREN IR
R - RFIERBEERMEI T

A B BOE = 81 B 32 B A0 A IR B
H > bR REHIINEBTRITE
ERBRFABEUOBEREH - 1T
XERMBREZ KSR

1. HERAREEHRSEE

2016 L+ - HEES®E
MERE R BRFERR
EHERTIZES « BEL
ERSIE R A PTG -
8 77 35 48O B AR IR A BT R
HEMBRIZRMEN - BEBR
B R BT AR - A
MERELYERE - 2B
BRZN  REERIBE -

SELR - BRABSHH T
2016 F 2R EIL R TE
B o Ed o i IR 1T (World
Bank)E 5 F1 A 8B M (2
BECER =) MER - B2
BR 4% F520164F K 3 3R 78 08
THAE2.9%  REF6AN
TR RIK04ME B » B &
& 1F 813 & 45 45 (OECD)
TE20164F2 A 3 1 89 & 37 4
EHHR BRI E2016F 15
RIEBI T AR3I%  REF
11 A /) 78 R B& 0.3 & o
2 B ERESABIMP
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER N

prediction on growth rate of 2016 global economy
to 3.4% in World Economy Outlook published in
January 2016, representing a decrease of 0.2
percentage point as compared with its prediction in
October 2015, and further lowered 0.2 percentage
point to 3.2% in its latest report published in April
2016.

Russian economy has fallen into crisis due to sluggish
oil price, while the economic sanctions imposed
by United States, European Union (“EU”) and other
developed economies against Russia keep simmering.
Economy disputes and games between Russia and
Western developed countries in the future filled with
uncertainty. Brazil suffered from the most severe
economy recession for decades and its debt ratio has
further deteriorated. The political deadlock has also
worsened the already grave financial situation, leads
to exposure of increasing risks of external shocks.
Upon the success of Brexit, British Pound slumped and
fell 11% against US dollar in the trading, which is the
greatest fall since 1985. Meanwhile, it also prejudiced
European integration process and resulted in changes
in geopolitics and economic pattern, which will have
profound influence on Europe or even the whole world.

Safety risks cannot be ignored

The complicated and changeable geopolitics
relationship, intertwinement between traditional
and non-traditional safety threats, ongoing military
actions in the Middle East, rampant terrorisms
organized by the Islamic State, uncertain DPRK
nuclear situation, intense conflicts in some areas of
Turkey and lrag and frequent terror attacks in Asia
and Europe have added uncertain factors to the
global environment.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMRE IRRAERAT

E20165F1 A 2 45 19 (- 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

New and higher requirements are to be met in
development of enterprises

The upgrading of international industrial structure,
revolution of new technology and development
of the low-carbon concept enriched the content
of international infrastructure investment and
cooperation, which includes rational planning of
regional development, assisting with finance
and project operational management, promoting
employment and industrial upgrading of the host
countries, improving the ecological environment of
such projects. Such new requirements have become
important factors when foreign project companies
select their partners and impose higher standards on
the multinational operation and integration planning
capabilities of international contractors. In addition,
pressure of competing with Europe, United States,
Japan and South Korea contractors, access and
technological barriers to enter middle and high-end
markets, social and cultural differences and gaps
with the host countries bring severe challenges to
survival and development of PRC enterprises in
overseas.

“One Belt and One Road” initiative injecting
fresh momentum to the industry development

“One Belt and One Road” initiative brought new
market opportunities. Countries along the route will
push ahead the interoperability of the infrastructure
and the construction of the international great route,
the reinforcement of the cooperation in energy
resources, the construction of the international
economic cooperation corridor and the joint
construction of the industry gathering zone for the
purpose of promoting the establishment of local
industrial systems. A new round of infrastructure
construction involving projects of railway, highway,
ports, electricity, pipelines and parks has launched,
providing unprecedented market opportunities for
enterprises to expand their overseas businesses.

BEERWR DT
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Financial mechanism innovation provided new energy
to project operation. To promote cooperation in
the “One Belt and One Road” projects, the PRC
government established the Silk Road Fund and
procured the establishment of Asian Infrastructure
Investment Bank and BRICS Development Bank as
well as Shanghai Cooperation Organization (SCO).
In recent years, as increasing number of countries
are involved in national currency swaps cooperation
and with RMB’s admission into the special drawing
rights basket, the pace of RMB internationalization
has further accelerated. In addition to policy financial
institutions, commercial financial institutions are
putting more efforts to support overseas investment
and engineering projects.

The upgrade of bilateral and multilateral cooperation
mechanism has laid a new cooperation platform for
enterprises. In the next five years, China’s position
in APEC, ASEM, G20 and SCO will be further
promoted. Upgraded version of China-ASEAN Free
Trade Area, construction of China-Korea/China-
Australia Free Trade Area, the “three networks and
one industrialization” between China and Africa and
China-Latin America and China-CEE infrastructure
cooperation mechanisms will create favorable
conditions for enterprises “Going Global”.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMRE IRRAERAT
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() Trading Business

In the first half of 2016, global trade remained relatively
weak, and the overall adverse environment and
uncertainty of monetary policy of developed countries
resulted in unstable exchange rate market. The structure
issues of developed and developing economies in the
aftermath of financial crisis have not yet been addressed.
Economy is hardly substantially recovered. In addition,
political and military actions in the Middle East could
hardly restore calm, and terrorist actions of Islamic
State would not disappear in the short term. As a large
number of oil exporters gathered in Middle East, trade
development will be impeded due to unstable military and
political situation, and the tense DPRK nuclear situation
and unsettling situation of the South China Sea will also
add uncertainty to foreign trade.

In the first half of 2016, the total amount of import and
export in China was RMB11,133.5 billion, a decrease of
3.3% year-on-year, of which the total export amounted
to RMB6,402.7 billion, a drop of 2.1%; the total import
amounted to RMB4,730.7 billion, a drop of 4.7%. (When
expressed in US dollar, the total amount of import and
export in China from January to June amounted to
US$1,712.7 billion, a decrease by 8.7% year-on-year, of
which the total export amounted to US$985.5 billion, a
drop of 7.7%; the total import amounted to US$727.2
billion, a drop of 10.2%.)° Based on the above, foreign
trade growth of China was apparently slower than
expectation and export may continue to face downward
pressure. On one hand, the Federal Reserve may raise
interest rates in the second half of 2016 and the dollar
index will shuffle upward. In order to safeguard against
financial risks, the exchange rate of RMB against US
dollar in the second half of 2016 will be managed to keep
a steady range, which will result in appreciation of RMB
against other currencies and add downward pressure
to export. On the other hand, EU is the biggest trading
partner of China. The Brexit brought many uncertainties
to foreign trade of China.

Source: regular press conference of MOFCOM (July 19, 2016)
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BERE R D

(i

In general, the trend of foreign trade of China heading
towards a steady and positive state has not changed. Its
main characteristics include: (i) export volume to some
of the countries and regions along the route of “One
Belt and One Road” is better than the overall standard;
(i) export of large complete set and high value-added
products maintains a positive growth; (iii) export and
import under the new foreign trade business model
is growing rapidly. Cross-border e-commerce trading,
market procurement trading and enterprises involved in
foreign trade integrated services retain the momentum
of rapid growth and become the new growth sources;
(iv) private enterprises remain the main force of export;
and (v) import volume of certain commodities keeps
growing. From January to June, the import volumes of
crude oil, iron ore, copper concentrate and seven other
commodities increased but the prices of which have
dropped, reducing a total foreign payment of US$52.65
billion, which is favorable for enterprises to lower their
costs and improve efficiency.

Design Consulting Services

With the support of “One Belt and One Road” strategy
and new-type urbanization construction, the survey and
design industry of China still have certain space for
development and may meet many new opportunities in
the medium and long run. However, global environment
has also changed significantly in line with China’s
economy entering into new normal. A majority of survey
and design enterprises in subdivided industries have
sensed the severity of the market.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Intensified industry competition

In recent years, the boundary of design industry
gradually blurred with increasing convergence of
industries. Some industrial groups, large-scale
equipment enterprises and other engineering
enterprises entered the design industry market.
The survey and design industry is becoming more
competitive, with increasing number of competitors,
and cross-industry competition is becoming common.

Capital operation becoming a new path of
development

Facing profound changes of industry market
competition and the impact of new technologies,
new industries, new models and new economies
on corporate development, traditional design
enterprises have reached the ceiling of endogenous
development. In recent years, an increasing number
of design enterprises have been trying to enter capital
market and pushing forward extended development
of company by virtue of capital operation and it has
become a new path of development. As one of the
ways of capital operation, acquisition has become
an important means of cross-region development,
horizontal expansion and vertical integration of
design enterprises.

BEERWR DT

TEBEFMA

MFR - REHTEAERE
R EXREERS
MBRRERES  —ER
SE - ABRBEXKEA
TRERMEEARFITED
5 BEREHTEHEF AN
HR HFHREBEAE B
RBEFETHTRE

EXEERRATNERER

EERITRM SR FRBHR
AL - AR - %
B AR MEEE X
BROTE  ERRTEE
EEBANEABRN KT
Wl MFR BHRBEZ
MR EERERBEEEART
5% BEENEFEPLE
IMERBEREKNBEEER
RIS - BB IEREAE
EM TR Z—  ERBRE
CEBREER  RRMRE
B — R ERF

B e

Interim Report 2016
ZE-AFHRHRE

21



22

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Crossover development becoming a new
normal

Recently, with the deeper degree of marketization in
various industries and regions, national market layout
has become the new normal for large-scale design
business. Encouraged by “Going Global” strategy
of China, many design companies has also showed
a global view and planned to layout international
market. Some enterprises have taken the first step
of internationalization and started to merge with
overseas enterprises, stepping up to a new level of
cross-regional development of industry.

Integrated services becoming a new trend

Many design enterprises put forward theories such
as “forming industrial chain integration development
advantage”, “whole industrial chain market”, “full

» o« » o«

service platform”, “all-in-one solutions”, “engineering

» oo«

technology integrated services experts”, “integrated
service providers” and “one-stop services providers”
in the course of transformation and upgrading,
reflecting a new trend of industry development.
Integrated services are not only essential for
engineering design companies to improve
profitability of their whole industrial chain, but also
necessary for engineering construction market.
In international engineering construction market,
engineering contracting model has been transferred
from EPC to “EPC+”, with an increasing number
of PPP-oriented investment projects. In domestic
engineering construction market, PPP and EPC
have also become important models in infrastructure
construction field.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In the first half of 2016, with the slow recovery in world
economy and complex challenging global environment, the
Company further reinforced its foundation and strived to cope
with difficulties, thus maintaining an overall stable development
momentum. For the Period, revenue from the International
Engineering Contracting Business accounted for approximately
54.1% of the Group’s total revenue, whereas the gross profit
accounted for approximately 77.6% of the Group’s total gross
profit, which established a solid foundation for achieving the
overall business goal of the Group for the whole year.

() International Engineering Contracting Business

We are a leading international engineering contracting and
services provider with a primary focus on EPC projects
and with particular expertise in the power sector. The
International Engineering Contracting Business is one of
the traditional core businesses of the Group, representing
54.1% of the Group’s total revenue for the Period. In
particular, revenue from the power sector accounted
for approximately 60.8% of the total revenue of the
Group’s International Engineering Contracting Business,
whereas the gross profit of the power sector accounted
for approximately 72.8% of the total gross profit of the
International Engineering Contracting Business. Gross
profit margin of the power sector maintained at an
industry-leading level of approximately 24.7%.
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The following table sets forth the details of the International T&REFABMBIERETEABE
Engineering Contracting Business for the Period, together THEEE - A R2015F R HAM L8
with comparative figures for the Corresponding Period HT
in 2015:
Six months Six months
ended June % of  ended June Increase/
30, 2016 Total 30, 2015 (decrease)
Bz Y
2016% 20155
64308 1 67308 1 #m,/
~MEA {545 % ~ER (R2)
RMB million RMB million
ANBEEET ANEEFET
Revenue Power A EWIED 2,761.8 60.8 3,301.7 -16.4%
Transportation RipEE 146.7 3.2 1,257.0 -88.3%
Telecommunications EFEA 16.7 0.4 165.9 -89.9%
Non-Core Sectors FOTE 1,618.8 35.6 950.6 70.3%
Total At 4,544.0 100.0 5,675.2 -19.9%
Gross profit ~ Power EH ENER 683.6 72.8 816.1 -16.2%
Transportation RmEE 27.6 2.9 148.4 -81.4%
Telecommunications B 2.2 0.2 12.5 -82.4%
Non-Core Sectors FEDTE 226.2 241 107.2 111.0%
Total &t 939.6 1000 10842 -13.3%
24 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Six months Six months
ended June % of ended June Increase/
30, 2016 Total 30, 2015 (decrease)

gz HZE

20165 20154
64308 L 64308 i/
~EA EEBEE% ~E A OR)

US$ million US$ million

BEER FEZET
Value of newly Power HEX SR 242.1 57.5 724.3 -66.6%
effective Transportation CEALE TBEEH 3.0 0.7 12.7 -76.4%
contracts  Telecommunications gkl - - - -
Non-Core Sectors FTE 176.3 41.8 - >100.0%
Total &3 421.4 100.0 737.0 -42.8%

As at As at
June % of December Increase/
30, 2016 Total 31,2015 (decrease)

R® N
20165 20155 i/
6A30R E8E%  12A831E (A)

US$ million US$ million

BEER BEET
Backlog Power REH ENER 5,682.6 69.3 4,757.0 19.5%
Transportation CEAE XBEH 656.3 8.0 676.6 -3.0%
Telecommunications EFER 420 0.5 446 -5.8%
Non-Core Sectors EROITE 1,816.6 22.2 1,884.9 -3.6%
Total &3 8,197.5 100.0 7,363.1 11.3%
Signed Power BENG  Eh8R 7,217.8 61.9 7,494.4 -3.7%
contracts  Transportation EHER RBEH 109.9 0.9 1,049.0 -89.5%
pending to  Telecommunications ERg - - - -
be effective  Non-Core Sectors FEZTE 4,334.4 37.2 3,647.5 18.8%
Total &3 11,662.1 100.0 12,190.9 -4.3%
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As at June 30, 2016, the Group had undertaken
engineering contracting projects in more than 48 countries
over the world, primarily in Asia, Africa, Europe and South
America. The following map indicates the locations of our

engineering contracting projects from January 1, 2009 to
June 30, 2016:

-~ -

Trlmdad and Tobago
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue

from the Group’s international engineering contracting

projects by geographic locations for the Period, together

with the comparative figures for the Corresponding Period

EEENWKE

vl

TREFIAEBNAAREE2015
F R R RS D/ B Ti2A

BIRE AR

in 2015:
Six months ended June 30,
B Z6H30H AR
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB million % of Total RMB million % of Total
AREEET wHHEES AREEET HABEE %
Asia EED 2,324.3 51.1 1,560.3 27.5
Africa JEM 1,073.7 23.6 1,346.8 23.7
Europe BN 372.4 8.2 307.0 5.4
South America EEM 773.2 17.0 2,390.2 42 1
North America JEEM 0.4 0.1 70.9 1.3
Total A% 4,544.0 100.0 5,675.2 100.0
1. Satisfactory Project Performance 1. BHABRERF

In the first half of 2016, although several operating
and performance indicators dropped as compared
with the Corresponding Period in 2015, the overall
development of the engineering contracting business
was stable, which was mainly affected in the following
three aspects: first, the current global economy is still
in deep adjustment, under which the overall recovery
is weak, the demand is sluggish and the prospect
remains uncertain; second, decrease in traditional
engineering contracting projects, intensified market
competition, narrowing of profitability of projects
and additional difficulty in executing projects; third,
worrisome outbound safety situation and surge
of political risks and national conflicts in some
countries, such as frequent terrorisms and regional
conflicts in lrag and Turkey, intensified political
disputes in several Latin American countries, all
of which have greatly increased uncertainties of
executing projects in these countries.
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In the first half of 2016, the Company has always
emphasized on the execution of projects. Quality
assurance and follow-up work have been highlighted
for completed projects; construction period, quality
and safety of projects have been under strict control
for on-going projects and projects management
standards have been continuously improved.

In terms of geographical segment, in Eastern Europe,
warranty period of each of Brest Power Plant and
Lukoml Power Plant in Belarus undertaken by the
Company expired on March 14, 2016 and May
29, 2016, respectively. Final acceptance has been
completed smoothly and project performance
certificates have been issued by the respective
owners. Brest Power Plant project marked the first
export of SGT5-4000F level combined cycle power
unit of China, which is also the largest and most
efficient gas steam combined cycle unit in operation
currently in Belarus, with generating capacity
accounting for 10% of total generating capacity of
Belarus.

In South America, the Sopladora Hydropower Station
in Ecuador that CMEC engaged in construction
completed its first grid connection on April 15,
2016 (local time) and the power unit is officially
put into operation. The power station will transmit
approximately 13.9% of total generating capacity
of Ecuador to state grid of Ecuador upon its
establishment and provide power to 1.3 million
households, saving approximately US$200 million
of fuel usage and energy importing expenditures
for Ecuador and reducing nearly 1,700,000 tons
of CO, emission. On May 8, 2016, the project
of No.6 600MW power unit of the central power
plant in Venezuela completed the 168 hours of unit
reliability assessment operation, 83 days ahead of
schedule. On May 17, 2016, project owner issued
the Provisional Acceptance Certificate (PAC),
marking that the project has finished construction
and the one-year warranty period begins. The project
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is the results of staffs’ collective efforts, careful
organization and prime construction works of the
Company after overcoming turmoail, financial difficulty,
severe supply shortage and other unfavorable
conditions in Venezuela, reflecting outstanding
project management performance of CMEC. In
the Period, this unit was able to operate with full
production in advance as the largest thermal power
generating unit in the Latin America region, alleviating
power shortage in Venezuela to certain extent and
making CMEC won wide recognition and receive
accolades in Venezuela.

In Asia, the inauguration ceremony of No.3 power
plant expansion project of Karaganda, Kazakhstan
was held on May 14, 2016. Governor of Karaganda,
Kazakhstan affirmed the great significance of the
new-built units to ensure electricity and heat power
supply of Karaganda and Kazakhstan and promote
economic development of Karaganda.

In Africa, the 90KV boucle power transmission project
in Dakar, Senegal has passed the final acceptance
on April 29, 2016, which means CMEC has fulfilled alll
contractual obligations. The successful completion
of this project has significantly improved stability
and reliability of the power grid in capital area of
Senegal, promoting the economic development of
Senegal and the local people’s living standard, and
it also lays a solid foundation for the Company to
further consolidate and expand electricity market in
the West Africa.
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In addition, a number of projects of the Company
have made good progress in the Period thus
attracting a lot of attention. The Bafoussam Stadium
and Limbe Stadium in Cameroun are the main
venues for African Women’s Championship 2016
and African Men’s Championship 2019, in particular,
the Bafoussam Stadium was inspected by the
Confederation of African Football (“CAF”) in April
2016. CAF was satisfied with the overall conditions
of Bafoussam Stadium, which passed the temporary
acceptance in the same month. On the other hand,
Limbe Stadium has accepted inspection visits of Wei
Wenhua, the Chinese Ambassador to Cameroun,
the Prime Minister and several government officers
of Cameroun in February and May this year,
respectively. The Prime Minister of Cameroun was
very pleased with the construction works of the
project after his visits and highly praised CMEC’s
contributions to Cameroun.

The commencement ceremony for Pakistan Thar coal
field Il and power station project was held on April
11, 2016. As a high-priority project in the “One Belt
and One Road”-“China-Pakistan Economic Corridor
Energy Planning”, the project is the first coal-power
integrated project of Pakistan, where Pakistan can
utilize local coal to resolve the electricity shortage
issue independently and steadily, which is of great
significance for Pakistan to overcome its energy
crisis, improve its power structure and push forward
local economic development.

In April 2016, the renovation project on water
supply and sewage treatment system of Zimbabwe
undertaken by CMEC has made significant progress.
Three clean water pumps at No. 1 water pump house
in the Morton Jaffry Water Plant have successfully
passed trial runs with all the performance parameters
reaching or above designed standards, winning
praises from owners of the project.
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Overcome difficulties to develop the market

In the Period, the total value of newly effective
contracts of the Group is US$421.4 million,
among which, power accounts for 57.5%, a
decrease of approximately 66.6% compared with
the Corresponding Period in 2015. It reflects the
elaborate preparations and rational decisions made
by the Company in respect of market expansion,
which include proactively complying with national
strategy like “One Belt and One Road”, “Investment
Driven EPC”, restarting seller’s credit project and
cooperating closer with GE and other companies as
well as enhancing construction of EPC management
system.

CMEC entered into a contract with Kipeto Energy
Limited in respect of the Kipeto Wind Farm project
in Kenya on January 24, 2016. The scope of the
project includes the construction of a wind power
station with an installed capacity of 102MW and
a 220kV transmission line, with a contract value
amounting to US$221 million. The project is the first
wind farm project in Kenya and Africa area and of
great significance to implement the “One Belt and
One Road” strategy in Africa and expand new energy
market in Africa area. Meanwhile, the project used
60 units of wind turbine generator manufactured by
GE with an installed capacity of 1.7MW, stimulating
further strategic cooperation between CMEC and
GE.
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CMEC entered into a contract with the State
Electricity Corporation of Laos in respect of Nam
Ou phase Il transmission line project in Laos on
March 29, 2016, with a contract value amounting
to approximately US$313 million. CMEC entered
into a contract with Phousy Group in respect of
Lang Prabang Mekong River bridge project on May
23, 2016, with a contract value of US$50 million.
The signing of these two projects made great
contributions to implementing “One Belt and One
Road” strategy and helped to explore new business
fields in Laos.

CMEC entered into a contract with Kenya Ministry
of Energy and Petroleum in respect of a power
transmission project in Kenya on May 24, 2016, with
a contract value amounting to approximately US$191
million. The Company entered into a contract with
Angola Ministry of Energy and Water in relation to
the public project for design, supply, construction,
commissioning and putting-into-service of transport
system associated with Lauca (Lauca-Huambo)
in Angola on June 14, with a contract value of
approximately US$400 million.

In the presence of the President of the PRC, Xi
Jinping and the President of Serbia, Tomislav Nikoli¢,
CMEC entered into the “Protocol on Funding and
Building Waste power Generation Plant in Serbia”
and the “Memorandum of Understanding on
Belgrade Sewage Plant Project” with the Minister
of Energy and Mining of Serbia, Aleksandar Antic
and the mayor of Belgrade, Sinisa Mali, respectively
on June 18, 2016. On the same day, the Company
also entered into the “Cooperation Memorandum”
in relation to Gacko Coal-fired Power Plant with
assistant general manager of Ploy Group and
Bosnian Serb Federal Energy Minister.
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The Company has stepped up its efforts in the
research on the layout of major national strategies
and put additional efforts to the development
important fields and markets. Second, the
Company keeps improving system formulation and
implementation during the life cycle of engineering
contracting and strengthening specialization and
refinement of project management. Third, the
Company insists on optimizing industrial chains and
allocates additional survey and design resources to
engineering contracting business by grasping the
opportunity brought by the incorporation of China
Machinery R&D and Jikan Research Institute to
improve system integration capacity and ability to
provide customers with one-stop solution packages.
Fourth, the Company takes advantage of every
favorable condition to expand overseas financing
channels to push forward a batch of seller’'s credit
projects and conducts in-depth research on PPP
project models to diversify business models of
engineering contracting. Fifth, with its two regional
subsidiaries in Singapore and Dubai as pilot units,
the Company takes full use of its advantages in
overseas finance, channels and procurement to
accelerate regionalization and localization of
engineering contracting, And lastly, the Company
enhances its strategic cooperation with GE and other
major international companies, optimizing cooperate
model and process and giving full play to their
respective advantages so as to achieve win-win
results.

During the Period, signed contracts pending to be
effective of the Group amounted to US$11,662.1
million, among which, power sector accounts for
approximately 61.9%.
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() Trading Business (D)ESEK

Demands of trading business at the overseas market in 2016%F E¥F - BHEBHEIN
the first half of 2016 remained weak. Export is confronted MG/ REARER - INE LA E
with bigger pressure and business scales of general NERK —REFNEBRER
trade are relatively small with weak sustainability and N BEETE TSR
vulnerable to market volatility. However, the trading B35 - BERRIBEHEBEE N ®
business team of the Company strived to beat the tough REHWTMBRE BNEBHE
market environment and drive trading business in certain ¥ B BT EE - FLIR
fields, such as trade industrialization, cooperation with ¥ BRENSIAEEZES
local government, new energy business and cross-border E

e-commerce business.

The following table sets forth the details of the Trading TREVNEZEAHEE HEBF
Business for the Period, together with the comparative BEER2015F FAEAM L ERET
figures for the Corresponding Period in 2015:

Six months Six months
ended June % of  ended June Increase/
30, 2016 Total 30, 2015 (decrease)
Bz Bz
2016 20154
64308 1t 64308 F m/
~MEA HEBEE% ~ER (R2)
RMB million RMB million
ARKEET AEEGET
Revenue International trade KA ERE S 2,162.9 64.1 3,073.4 -29.6%
Domestic trade NES 1,213.6 35.9 829.1 46.4%
Total &3 3,376.5 100.0 3,902.5 -13.5%
Gross profit  International trade 5 BEES 115.1 78.4 299.8 -61.6%
Domestic trade e 31.8 21.6 55.0 -42.2%
Total &3t 146.9 100.0 354.8 -58.6%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the Period, China Machinery Industrial kept on pushing
industrialization, focusing on research and development
and production of specialized and high value-added
products to meet clients’ and markets’ demand for high
technology products, and has again obtained “High-
tech Enterprise Certificate”. Currently, it has established
CMIPC Huajin Casting Co., Ltd. jointly with Huajin
Metallurgy foundry* (32 &)A€ §55/) and CMEC Precision
Production (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd* (P RETRETE#RAR A
&) jointly with Yangzhou Yifeng Copper Co., Ltd* (/!
— LN AR A R]). The raiser hammer developed jointly
by China Machinery Industrial and Jinan Forging Institute*
(B Fa $538FM) was on display at 14th China International
Foundry Expo of 2016 and aroused highly concern of
the industry and won the prize of Innovative Foundry
Equipment. Besides, the brake disc applied to high-
speed rail developed by China Machinery Industrial has
obtained proprietary intellectual property rights, including
three utility model patents and six software copyrights,
with leading research and development and production
technology in the PRC. It has also obtained certificate
of series products covering 200-350 km/hour in China
issued by China Railway Test & Certification Centre
(CRCQ). It has been running well since its commencement
of commercial operation.

Eastern China business department of the Company
kept on promoting business of CMEC New Energy and
“EasyTrade” business. CMEC New Energy completed the
construction and grid connection of seven photovoltaic
power station projects in the Period and its first 60kW
distributed photovoltaic project established in northeast
area has officially commenced grid connection on February
29, 2016. As the first distributed photovoltaic power
generation project in Changchun City, data obtained in the
course of its operation will provide valuable data support
and experience for expanding the northeast market in
the PRC. The first agricultural photovoltaic power project
of CMEC New Energy-the 20MW ground level power
project at Zhuangmu Town, Changfeng County, Anhui
Province has officially connected to grid on March 31,
2016. The total investment of the project amounted to
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RMB160 million, covering 600 mu of land. The adoption
of agricultural photovoltaic model is beneficial to the
development of local integrated rural circled economy,
tourism and agriculture and will safeguard the local energy
supply, create economic benefit and social effect to the
local community and promote harmonious development
of solar energy and agriculture. “EasyTrade” business of
CMEC New Energy continued to develop in the Period
with a total of import and export amount of approximately
US$17 million involving nearly 90 contracted services
enterprises in various industries such as chemical
engineering, photovoltaic, textile and food.

In recent years, the rapidly growing cross-border
e-commerce business has been an important initiative
for innovation and competitiveness promotion in
trading business. The Company has taken advantage
of the cross-border e-commerce platform to integrate
Trading Business resources through cooperating with
large third-party platforms including Alibaba Group,
and has become one of Alibaba Group’s important
partners of import sources. In addition, leveraging on
CMEC'’s overseas presence over the years, supply chain
integration capabilities, service operating system, large-
scale Trading Business and foreign trade talent team,
the Company has further promoted the development
of e-commerce business. In the Period, the Company
sought to discuss and communicate with stakeholders
about the development opportunity, pattern and planning
of cross-border e-commerce business through holding
a cross-border e-commerce business seminar and
actively participating in a number of meetings including
the “Internet +” seminar held by SINOMACH Group
and Alibaba Group Global B2B Ecological Summit.
The Company won the award of “The Most Influential
Enterprise of Alibaba Group Import Sources in 2015 (2015
FEMEODEEENSEREEXENEE).
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(lll) Service Business

BEERWR DT

(Z)BRHRE

Other than the International Engineering Contracting

Business and the Trading Business of the Group, the

Company is also engaged in Service Business, mainly

including design consulting services, logistics services,

exhibition services, tendering agency services and export-

import agency services. During the Period, the Service

Business has maintained a good momentum of growth.

The revenue and gross profit from Service Business were
RMB473.0 million and RMB124.3 million, respectively.

The following table sets forth the details of the Group’s

Service Business for the Period, together with the

comparative figures for the Corresponding Period in 2015:

BT AEENBRREIRABER
RESEBIN  RRBRE—F
BENRBEL  FE28EF R
TR ANIRT - MIRRT  RE
fR7 - MIZRERS - ELOR
BERBE - RABM - REEH
BRERAERIT - RERBEBD
WAFEFR DRl A ARKEAT3.0
BAETMARKI243EETT °

TR AR B A AR A R
BB ER20155 R AR L BB

=]

= -

Six months Six months
ended June % of  ended June Increase/
30, 2016 Total 30, 2015 (decrease)
Bz BEE
2016% 2015%
6A30A Lt 6A30A 1 gm/
~MEA 1% ~EA ()
RMB million RMB million
ARBEET ANREEET
Revenue Logistics services KA IR 738 15.6 129.2 -42.9%
Design consulting Het B R RE
services 221.3 46.8 226.5 -2.3%
Exhibition services RERS 32.4 6.8 61.1 -47.0%
Tendering agency RERERS
services 11.0 2.3 3.8 189.5%
Export-import agency ENORERS
services 10.7 2.3 10.8 -0.9%
Others Hf 123.8 26.2 126.0 -1.7%
Total &t 473.0 100.0 557.4 -15.1%
Gross profit  Total ES At 124.3 100.0 153.6 -19.1%
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CMEC has been actively integrating all aspects of
resources in recent years. With the incorporation of China
Machinery R&D and Jikan Research Institute, CMEC
began to build design consulting business sector by
strengthening investigations and design resource support
for engineering contracting business, so as to improve
system integration capabilities and the ability to provide
customers with comprehensive turnkey solutions. The
Company currently has established a design consulting
management department to formulate the development
strategy for the design consulting sector.

In the Period, the two design institutes of the design
consulting sector still maintained their growth despite
the overall substantial downturn in the investigations and
design market.

China Machinery R&D has maintained relatively stable
development in the three major areas — industry, construction
and municipal environmental protection, and power
engineering business has become its pillar business.
The photovoltaic power EPC business has also made
great progress by undertaking a number of influential
photovoltaic powers EPC and distributed energy EPC
projects in first half of the year 2016. In the first half of
the year, the traditional core business of Jikan Research
Institute maintained steady development, overseas
engineering obtained a substantial growth, and the EPC
business achieved new breakthroughs. The two design
institutes continued to carry out research works. In 2016,
China Machinery R&D applied for 9 provincial science and
technology projects, compiled and co-compiled a number
of industry standards and technical documents, as well
as obtained a total of about 20 industrial or provincial
achievement awards and nine licensed patents. Jikan
Research Institute has undertaken one new national
project and two provincial projects in the Period.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

REIEMRE TRRBERAE

FFK - CMECTEIR B A B IRED
ﬁﬁ’%%¢%ﬁ\&@h%%
&3 A - CMECRI 16 4T & R 717K
BRI - IR YRR ER
HBIRABEBHZE  RAR
MEKEIMBEPIRH—ETF
EHABRTTENEES - BAIE
PRI REHEAEER  WEFH
TE R At RE AR R 3 R B

NER - ERRBET IS EBE
BARETBENTAERT - &
B AR 58 Y M KRR AT B K AR
BT —EREMNER  XBEE
REFFRE -

RgBTE TE - EE - MBURR
“REFHERRATE BT
BEBEKAEITER - K

BEARDEBHIETERAN
%E*A¢L¥EQ&T*HE
EBRAFENINHKRESBER
MomaeR@ABIER - #E
OWERETEEBERTE 8
SNTRREEFHBRANRE NI
R IRBFARERFTRK -MW
AL BT MR TR EF R
TS F BRROBAERBBR
MTsr8ITEE - £ 2{EZETE
AR X - EHATESLD
20THTT ¥ A MK R K O1E
RIEEF) o &b pA 28 B 8 3
EEXMBEE1E EHBEEH2
E o



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

() RBE XK

(IV) Investment and Financing Business

In the Period, the Company continued to implement its
strategy of “investment-driven EPC”, which has achieved
initial results. The Thar coal-electric integration project in
Pakistan, as the first coal-electric integration project under
“China-Pakistan Economic Corridor”, has made innovation
in project financing mode through establishing a series of
financing structure arrangements. The Company signed
the financing agreement at the end of 2015. On April 8,
2016, the project financing was officially completed. This
marks the formal implementation of the first overseas
investment of CMEC, achieving a breakthrough in its
investment business.

In addition, the Maldives 1.5MW photovoltaic power
plant investment project made steady progress in the
first half of 2016. The project is an exemplary project
under the “Accelerating Sustainable Private Investment
in Renewable Energy” framework of World Bank’s
International Development Association. CMEC and a
Swiss subsidiary of Grass Solartechnik Schweiz SA,
formed a consortium and entered into the project power
purchase agreement and implementation agreement
on October 15, 2015. In the Period, the project was
in the early stage and pending the approval by local
government, and preparing for the commencement of
construction. This is CMEC's first overseas investment
in new energy projects, laying a sound foundation for
CMEC’s future development in the power market and
similar projects in the Indian Ocean region.
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In the Period, the Company was on track to develop
domestic new energy investment business. CMEC New
Energy has invested in the construction of roof-top
photovoltaic power stations in Wuxi City, Ningbo City
and Hangzhou Bay and to build ground level photovoltaic
power stations in huge electricity consumption areas such
as Jiangxi Province, Jiangsu Province, Anhui Province and
Shandong Province.

I1l. HUMAN RESOURCES

As at June 30, 2016, the Group had approximately 3,615
(December 31, 2015: 3,485) employees. Employees’
remuneration comprises basic salary and performance salary.
The performance salary is determined according to the
assessment of the performance of all staff. The Company
does not adopt any pre- or post-IPO share award scheme or
share option scheme.

The Company provides systematic and effective training for
the employees. The Company also provides sustainable and
specific educational training for the senior management,
middle management as well as technical and operational staff
with a view to improving the quality and ability of the staff at
different levels.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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IV. FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with
the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group
together with the accompanying notes included in this result
announcement and other sections herein.

1. Overview

For the Period, each of the major financial data of the
Group presented certain level of downward trend, while
the gross profit margin of core businesses was still
maintained at a relatively high level.

2. Revenue

The Group generated its revenue from the International
Engineering Contracting Business, Trading Business and
Service Business.

For the Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately RMB8,393.5 million, representing a
decrease of 17.2% as compared with the Group’s revenue
of RMB10,135.1 million for the Corresponding Period in
2015.
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The following table sets out, for the periods indicated, the

amount and percentage of the Group’s total revenue by

each of the Group’s three business segments:

TERIRARAEASE = E
EHoEE ANRAZERER
SERBEANAEDL

Six months ended June 30,

BZ6A30HLAMEA
2016 2015
20165 20155

RMB million % of Total RMB million % of Total

ARKEET BEHNS AREGET A%
International Engineering AR IRAEER

Contracting Business

Power ENEER 2,761.8 32.9 3,301.7 32.6
Transportation RBES 146.7 1.7 1,257.0 12.4
Telecommunications EEA 16.7 0.2 165.9 1.6
Non-Core Sectors FLTE 1,618.8 19.3 950.6 9.4
Trading Business BREH
International trade BIRE 5 2,162.9 25.8 3,073.4 30.3
Domestic trade NE5 1,213.6 14.5 829.1 8.2
Service Business G ES 473.0 5.6 557.4 55
Total @t 8,393.5 100 10,1351 100
1) International Engineering Contracting 1) BERIBREER

Business

For the Period, the Group’s revenue generated
from the International Engineering Contracting
Business amounted to RMB4,544.0 million, which
accounted for 54.1% of the Group’s total revenue
for the Period, representing a decrease of 19.9% as
compared with approximately RMB5,675.2 million for
the Corresponding Period in 2015, primarily due to
the decrease in revenue from the power sector and
transportation sector.
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For the Period, revenue from the power sector
amounted to RMB2,761.8 million, representing a
decrease of 16.4 % as compared with RMB3,301.7
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015,
primarily due to the significant progress of the
power station projects in South America in the
Corresponding Period in 2015, which generated
higher revenue as compared with the first half of
2016.

For the Period, revenue from the transportation
sector amounted to RMB146.7 million, representing
a decrease of 88.3% as compared with RMB1,257.0
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015,
primarily attributable to the progress delay of the
railway reconstruction project in South America
as a result of the leadership transition of local
government in the first half of 2016, which generated
less revenue as compared with the first half of 2015.

For the Period, revenue from the telecommunications
sector amounted to RMB16.7 million, representing
a decrease of 89.9% as compared with RMB165.9
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015,
mainly due to the greater progress achieved by
the telecommunications projects in Asia in the
Corresponding Period in 2015, which generated
more revenue as compared with the first half of
2016.

For the Period, revenue from the non-Core Sectors
amounted to RMB1,618.8 million, representing an
increase of 70.3% as compared with RMB950.6
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015,
primarily due to the greater progress achieved by
the water plant and house construction projects
in Africa and Asia in the first half of 2016, which
generated more revenue as compared with the first
half of 2015.
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2)

3)

Trading Business

For the Period, the Group’s revenue generated from
the Trading Business reached RMB3,376.5 million,
which accounted for 40.3% of the Group’s total
revenue for the Period, representing a decrease
of 13.5% as compared with RMB3,902.5 million
for the Corresponding Period in 2015, which
was attributable to the decrease in revenue from
international trade.

For the Period, revenue from the international trade
amounted to RMB2,162.9 million, representing a
decrease of 29.6% as compared with RMB3,073.4
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015, mainly
because of the great decline of food intermediary
trade business in Europe in the first half of 2016,
which had larger trading volume in the first half of
2015.

For the Period, revenue from domestic trade
amounted to RMB1,213.6 million, representing an
increase of 46.4% as compared with RMB829.1
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015, mainly
as a result of an increase in the trading volume of
solar energy components.

Service Business

For the Period, the Group’s revenue generated
from the Service Business amounted to RMB473.0
million, which accounted for 5.6% of the Group’s
total revenue for the Period, representing a decrease
of 15.1% as compared with RMB557.4 million for
the Corresponding Period in 2015, mainly due
to the business volume decrease of logistic and
exhibition business as compared with that of the
Corresponding Period in 2015.
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Cost of sales

For the Period, the Group’s cost of sales decreased by
15.9% to RMB7,182.7 million from RMB8,542.5 million
for the Corresponding Period in 2015.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

1)

Gross Profit

During the Period, the Group’s gross profit amounted
to RMB1,210.8 million, representing a decrease of
24.0% as compared with RMB1,592.6 million for the
Corresponding Period in 2015.

Gross profit of the Group for the period consists of
the following:

3.

BEERWR DT

SHERAE

RAEIRE - NREBEMIEENAR
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Six months ended June 30,

HZ6A30R1EA
2016 2015
20165 20155

RMB million % of Total RMB million % of Total

AREEET BEN% AREBETL ABEER%
International Engineering BB IRABER

Contracting Business

Power ENEER 683.6 56.4 816.1 51.3
Transportation RimEH 27.6 2.3 148.4 9.3
Telecommunications AR 2.2 0.2 12.5 0.8
Non-Core Sectors FZOTE 226.2 18.7 107.2 6.7
Trading Business BREK
International trade BES 115.1 9.5 299.8 18.8
Domestic trade EY) 31.8 2.6 55.0 3.5
Service Business [ ESS 124.3 10.3 153.6 9.6
Total st 1,210.8 100 1,692.6 100
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International Engineering Contracting
Business

For the Period, the Group’s gross profit from
the International Engineering Contracting
Business amounted to RMB939.6 million, which
accounted for 77.6% of the Group'’s total gross
profit for the Period, representing a decrease of
13.3% as compared with RMB1,084.2 million
for the Corresponding Period in 2015, primarily
due to the decrease in gross profit resulted from
the decrease of revenue in the power sector,
transportation sector and telecommunications
sector for the Period.

For the Period, gross profit of the power sector
amounted to RMB683.6 million, representing
a decrease of 16.2% as compared with
RMB816.1 million for the Corresponding
Period in 2015, primarily due to the significant
progress made by the power station projects
in South America during the Corresponding
Period in 2015, which generated more revenue
as compared with that in the first half of 2016.

For the Period, gross profit of the transportation
sector amounted to RMB27.6 million,
representing a decrease of 81.4% as compared
with RMB148.4 million for the Corresponding
Period in 2015, mainly attributable to the
progress delay of the railway reconstruction
project in South America as a result of the
leadership transition of local government in the
first half of 2016, which generated less revenue
as compared with that in the first half of 2015.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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For the Period, gross profit of the
telecommunications sector amounted to
RMB2.2 million, representing a decrease of
82.4% as compared with RMB12.5 million
for the Corresponding Period in 2015,
primarily due to the significant progress of the
telecommunications projects in Asia during the
Corresponding Period in 2015, which generated
more revenue as compared with that in the first
half of 2016.

For the Period, gross profit of the non-
Core Sectors amounted to RMB226.2
million, representing an increase of 111.0%
as compared with RMB107.2 million for the
Corresponding Period in 2015, primarily due
to the greater progress achieved by the water
plant and house construction projects in Africa
and Asia in the first half of 2016, as well as the
higher gross profit margin of house construction
projects in Africa completed in the first half of
2016 than that of project execution in the first
half of 2015.

Trading Business

For the Period, the Group’s gross profit from
the Trading Business amounted to RMB146.9
million, which accounted for 12.1% of the
Group’s total gross profit for the Period,
representing a decrease of 58.6% as compared
with RMB354.8 million for the Corresponding
Period in 2015, primarily due to the revenue
decrease of international trade and the higher
gross profit margin achieved by the domestic
hydro power plant supply project during the
Corresponding Period in 2015.
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i) Service Business

For the Period, the Group’s gross profit from
the Service Business amounted to RMB124.3
million, which accounted for 10.3% of the
Group’s total gross profit for the Period,
representing a decrease of 19.1% as compared
with RMB153.6 million for the Corresponding
Period in 2015, primarily due to the decreases
in revenue and gross profit margin of logistic
business as compared with the Corresponding
Period in 2015.

2) Gross Profit Margin

During the Period, the Group’s gross profit margin
decreased by 1.3 percentage points to approximately
14.4% from 15.7% for the Corresponding Period in
2015.

Gross profit margins of the Group for the period are
set out in the following table:

2)

i) IRIEEE

RAHAR - AEBRS
EBHENRBARYE
124387 &%
EARHBBEHN10.3%
K 82015 [A HE A R
¥153.68 & T T &
19.1% * T EHRYR
E¥BBARBD - REEY
MEBHEMNETR EF
FEAAE AT T B -

ERE
RAERT - AR ER %

4914.4% - 2015F A HIHY
15.7% N&1.3EAET D E -

REME » NREBEENREK
BERmT

Six months ended June 30,

HZ6H30B LLAEA
2016 2015
20164 20154
% %
International Engineering BEERIBREER 20.7 19.1
Contracting Business
Power B HEER 24.7 24.7
Transportation RiEEHR 18.8 11.8
Telecommunications Ea ikl 13.2 7.5
Non-Core Sectors IEZOTITE 14.0 11.3
Trading Business BHEK 4.4 9.1
International trade B E 5 5.3 9.8
Domestic trade NE 5 2.6 6.6
Service Business RIS £ 26.3 27.6
Total #met 14.4 15.7
48 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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International Engineering Contracting
Business

For the Period, the Group’s gross profit margin
for the International Engineering Contracting
Business was 20.7%, as compared with 19.1%
for the Corresponding Period in 2015, which
was mainly due to increase in gross profit
margin of Transportation, Telecommunications
and non-Core Sectors.

For the Period, the gross profit margin of the
power sector was 24.7%, which was at the
same level of 2015.

For the Period, the gross profit margin of the
transportation sector increased to 18.8%,
compared with 11.8% for the Corresponding
Period in 2015, primarily due to the relatively
low gross profit margin of ship projects in Asia
carried out in the first half of 2015, while the
gross profit margin of the railway reconstruction
projects in South America increased due to the
impact of change of exchange rate and the
division of supervising service.

For the Period, the gross profit margin of the
telecommunications sector increased by 5.7%
to 13.2% from 7.5% of the Corresponding
Period in 2015, mainly due to the higher gross
profit margin of the on-going telecommunication
backbone network projects in Africa in the first
half of 2016.

For the Period, the gross profit margin of
the non-Core Sectors increased to 14.0%,
representing an increase of 2.7% as compared
with 11.3% for the Corresponding Period in
2015, primarily attributable to the completion
of house construction projects in Africa with
a higher gross profit margin in the first half of
2016.

EIfR T FE A B R 7

RZAEAR - A& EER
TRRABREBENE
#20.7% * 20155 [
HAE191%  EZHRP
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EMEEHHR LA -

RAHIRE - EHERTT
¥ FERE B24.7% - BB
2015F A HA#F -

RAHR - RimEETT
FEMEAZE18.8% -
Mm20154 [ H1 Bl &
11.8% * ETZMAMN2015
FLEFFRITHOARNE
MERATE R EFERER
& - R - ERMNER
MGETE H BB L
REBEBFOHZ
2. ENEFREE -

RAERR - EF BT
¥TFEB13.2% ' It
20154 [A] HA #97.5% -
EFAHTET% EEMH
20165 L ¥ F £ #
TEIEMBE B H4EE
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RARHAR - FERROITE
EFMEHFE14.0% " It
2015 [AI #AMY11.3% -
EAT27% B H
MR20164F £ ¥ F % T
BEMEERRIEEE
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i) Trading Business

For the Period, the gross profit margin of
the Group’s Trading Business decreased by
4.7% to 4.4%, compared with approximately
9.1% for the Corresponding Period in 2015,
primarily due to the decrease in the gross
profit margins of the international and domestic
trading businesses as compared with that for
the Corresponding Period in 2015.

i) Service Business

For the Period, the Group’s gross profit margin
for the Service Business was 26.3%, as
compared with approximately 27.6% for the
Corresponding Period in 2015.

Other Revenue

The Group’s other revenue increased by 423.1% to
RMBG6.8 million for the Period as compared with RMB1.3
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015. This increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in government
subsidies during the Period.

Other Income/(Expenses), Net

The Group’s other income/(expenses), net amounted
to RMB(12.6) million for the Period as compared with
RMB38.4 million for the Corresponding Period in 2015.
The other income/(expenses), net was mainly attributable
to the loss for the Period arising from a fair value change
on foreign currency forward exchange contracts and
interest rate swap contracts.
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10.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased
by 2.0% to RMB403.4 million for the Period as compared
with RMB411.8 million for the Corresponding Period in
2015.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 1.3%
to RMB312.8 million for the Period as compared with
approximately RMB316.9 million for the Corresponding
Period in 2015.

Other Operating Income

The Group’s other operating income increased by
1,351.7% to RMB42.1 million for the Period as compared
with approximately RMB2.9 million for the Corresponding
Period in 2015. This increase was mainly because the
receivables of certain bad debt provision have been
received by the Company, thereby leading to the reversal
of the corresponding loss of bad debt.

Profit from Operations

The Group’s profit from operations decreased by 41.4%
to RMB530.9 million for the Period as compared with
RMB906.5 million for the Corresponding Period in 2015.
This decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the overall gross profit of the Company to a certain
extent.

10.

BEERWR DT
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11.

12,

13.

14.

Finance Income/Finance Expenses

The Group’s finance income increased by 52.4% to
RMB558.1 million for the Period as compared with
RMB366.2 million for the Corresponding Period in 2015.
This increase was primarily due to the increase in gains on
foreign currency exchange. The Group’s finance expenses
increased by 53.9% to RMB35.1 million for the Period
as compared with approximately RMB22.8 million for
the Corresponding Period in 2015. This increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in interest expenses on
borrowings. As a result, the Group’s net finance income
increased by 52.3% to RMB523.0 million for the Period
as compared with the net finance income of RMB343.4
million for the Corresponding Period in 2015.

Income Tax

The Group’s income tax decreased by 17.1% to
RMB259.4 million for the Period as compared with
RMB312.9 million for the Corresponding Period in 2015,
mainly due to the decrease in profit before tax.

Profit for the Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit
decreased by 14.2 to RMB804.2 million for the Period as
compared with RMB937.2 million for the Corresponding
Period in 2015, and its net profit margin increased by
0.4% to 9.6% for the Period as compared with 9.2% for
the Corresponding Period in 2015.

Profit Attributable to the Shareholders

The profit attributable to the shareholders decreased by
14.6% to RMB800.4 million for the Period as compared
with RMB937.1 million for the Corresponding Period in
2015.
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16.

17.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Profit Attributable to the Holders of Non-
Controlling Interests

The profit attributable to the holders of non-controlling
interests of the Group amounted to RMB3.8 million for
the Period as compared with a profit of RMBO0.1 million
for the Corresponding Period in 2015.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at June 30, 2016, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents decreased marginally by 5.6% to
RMB19,852.9 million as compared with RMB21,032.9
million as at December 31, 2015, primarily due to the
decrease in the net cash flows from investing activities.

As at June 30, 2016, the Group’s borrowings decreased
by approximately 31.5% to RMB644.0 million as
compared with RMB940.2 million as at December 31,
2015. RMB369.8 million (including RMB192.1 million of
long-term borrowings due within one year) was short-
term borrowings and the remaining amount of RMB274.2
million was long-term borrowings.

Major investment

As at June 30, 2016, the Group’s investments in
associates increased by 291.6% to RMB210.7 million
as compared with RMB53.8 million as at December
31, 2015, mainly due to the increased investment
on coal-electric project in Pakistan pursuant to the
investment plan; the Group’s investments in joint ventures
increased to RMB314.0 million from RMB210.0 million
as at December 31, 2015, mainly due to the increased
contribution to CMEC New Energy, a joint venture of the
Group.

15.

16.
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18. Major acquisitions and Disposals

The Group has completed the acquisition of 100% equity
in CNCEC during the Period. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on February 5 and May 23, 2016, respectively.

19. Subsequent Events

There are no subsequent events occurred after June 30,
2016, which may have a significant effect on the assets
and liabilities on future operations of the Group.

LIQUIDITY

Our principal sources of funds have been cash generated
from operations and various short-term and long-term bank
borrowings and lines of credit, as well as equity contributions
from Shareholders. Our liquidity requirements derive primarily
from our working capital needs, purchases of fixed assets and
the servicing of our indebtedness.

We have historically met our working capital and other liquidity
requirements principally from cash generated from operations
and financed the remainder primarily through bank borrowings
and proceeds from the listing of the H Shares on the Stock
Exchange.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash flows

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash

flows for the Period, with the comparative figures for the

Corresponding Period in 2015:

BEERWR DT

BERE
TREHHEMRABHNIR SR
S8R - BR2015F R EI R
HF

Six months ended June 30,

HZ6H30H1E<EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR®EEET) (AE¥BET)

Net cash flows from K EBFTTS

operating activities MRS MEFEE 211.0 2,121
Net cash flows used in wEEEFTA

investing activities BRSNS FHE (1,219.8) (1,535.6)
Net cash flows used in BEREIFTA

financing activities RS REFH (314.8) (226.4)
Net increase/(decrease) RERRSEFEY

in cash and cash equivalents 2GRl E5E (1,323.6) 350.1
Cash and cash equivalents at AEHE TR e &

the beginning of the Period REFEY 21,032.9 18,806.8
Effect of foreign R E R FE

exchange rate changes, (net) 143.6 (107.2)
Cash and cash equivalents REIERHRE R

at the end of the Period NWEEEY 19,852.9 19,049.7

As at June 30, 2016, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents decreased by 5.6% to RMB19,852.9 million
as compared with RMB21,032.9 million as at December

31, 2015. The decrease was primarily due to the net cash

flows paid for the investing activities.

B £2016F6H30H © K &
WBEeRREEBEMAARKE
19,852.9B BT - ME E£20155F
12A31H Al B AKR%21,082.98
B BiBA5.6% -  xBAKRE
EESNHFRERESIE -
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Cash flows from operating activities

For the Period, we had net cash flows from operating
activities of RMB211.0 million. Net cash used in operating
activities was a result of operating profit before changes
in working capital in the amount of RMB1,063.6 million,
a cash inflow due to changes in working capital of
RMB818.6 million and income tax paid in the amount
of RMB607.6 million. The changes in working capital
mainly included an increase in receipts in advance
of RMB1,026.5 million, a decrease in receivables for
construction contracts of RMB919.7 million and a
decrease in trade and other receivables of RMB139.3
million. Such amount was partially offset by a decrease in
trade and other payables of RMB1,703.9 million.

Cash flows from investing activities

For the Period, our net cash flows used in investing
activities were RMB(1,219.8) million. Our cash outflow
from investing activities primarily consisted of acquisition
of equity in a subsidiary in the amount of RMB532.7
million, investments in associates and joint ventures in the
amount of RMB251.2 million and investment in preferred
shares in the amount of RMB266.1 million.

Cash flows from financing activities

For the Period, our net cash flows used in financing
activities were RMB(314.8) million. Our cash outflow
from financing activities primarily consisted of repayment
of borrowings in the amount of RMB647.4 million. Cash
inflow primarily consisted of borrowings raised in the
amount of RMB351.2 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Our capital expenditures consisted primarily of the
purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and lease prepayments. The Group’s capital
expenditures increased by 16.9% to RMB126.7 million
for the Period as compared with RMB108.4 million for
the Corresponding Period in 2015, mainly due to the
slight increase of input in the construction of the Group’s
infrastructure projects of fixed assets as compared with
that for the Corresponding Period in 2015.

Our capital commitments mainly include the value of
contracts signed but not yet completed of engineering
work under construction and investment business. On
June 30, 2016, the capital commitments of the Group
was RMB1,332.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 22.6% as compared with RMB1,721.5
million on December 31, 2015. It was mainly attributable
to the Group’s investment projects in Pakistan starting to
perform contribution obligations gradually.

Working capital

(a) Trade and other receivables
Our trade and other receivables primarily consist of
trade and bill receivables, advances to suppliers,

other receivables related to agency services and
amount due from or advances to fellow subsidiaries.

BEERWR DT

BEXRMXMERELE

BMNEAHAEETEREBEY
¥ BEERE - REWENRE
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BEEWR D

The following table sets forth the turnover days of
the average trade receivables and the turnover days
of the average trade payables of the Company for

TR AHE AR RR]F
BB S RWFANFHE S
FENFIERBERE - EF

the Period, together with the comparative figures for 2015F A EAM L R T -
the Corresponding Period in 2015:
Six months Six months
ended June 30, ended June 30,
2016 2015
BZ2016%F B Z=2015%
6 H30H 6H30H
WEREA LE7XE A
days days
AE AE
Turnover days of EoEBFIHES
the average trade /S EEE N
receivables for (Hat1)
the Trading Business
(Note 1) 93 67
Turnover days of T8 5 R IAER
the average trade BERE (f7F2)
payables (Note 2) 309 258
Note 1: The average trade receivables for the Trading Hia1 - BRERFHZE 5 R
Business are the sum of opening balance and the HIBNEESHEKE S
closing balance of trade receivables for the Trading FE U FIB ER Y 45 fh B HA
Business divided by two. The turnover days of REBNENBR -5
the average trade receivables for the Trading H - EFEBEHES
Business are the average trade receivables for the el FIE R A K& T
Trading Business divided by revenue of the Trading BESEBFEHEFE
Business and multiplied by 180. WOk IERR LA E 5 275 U
ANEBFRA18015H, -
Note 2: The average trade payables are the sum of opening Hizzo - EHB FENZTELE
balance and the closing balance of trade payables B DN RIBER AR
divided by two. The turnover days of the average B HA R 45 B8 AV AR TN A R
trade payables are the average trade payables 1B - B SER
divided by cost of sales and multiplied by 180. IR IRE KB T 5T
B2 5 RN RIAR A
i & P AN B3R IA18015
& oo
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the aging analysis
of trade and bill receivables (net of allowance of
doubtful debts) based on the invoice date as at June
30, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

BEERWR DT

T&REFE =201696 530
H N2015F12A31H % 5
FEUGRIE R B R (05
REREE) HEZ2H MK

BT
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
A2016F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥BEET) (AEEF=ET)
Within 3 months 31E A AR 2,388.5 2,699.3
3 months to 6 months 31 A =61E A 433.7 531.2
6 months to 1 year S EENES 998.7 326.9
Over 1 year 1F A E 605.1 660.0
4,426.0 4,217.4

The Group’s credit policies with its customers
for the Period remained the same as that for the
Corresponding Period in 2015. We continuously
enhanced our management of trade and bills
receivables to reduce our exposure to doubtful
debts. In addition, we made allowance for doubtful
debts after fully considering the nature of trade
and bills receivables and their collectability. As at
June 30, 2016, allowance for doubtful debts for our
trade and bill receivables amounted to RMB610.3
million, accounting for 12.1% of our trade and
bill receivables, compared with RMB647.8 million,
accounting for 13.3% of our trade and bill receivables
as at December 31, 2015.

RAHEE - AREEHEARP
= BER 20155 R HAAE
[ o B PITET sk B 5 FE UK
HIEREREENER - L
SOREFTRENRRRRE
Lo+ TN ERE 5K
BEREREERNEE RET
WE e - BMBREST
RS - B E201696A30
H ®ZMHEZEKRFIER
EWREMENRERE R
AR#61038 8T h#&
18 2 e W38 & B W =&
#912.1% - MEZE20155F12
HA31H Al & A R¥647.88
B ERME S EWKIE
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(b) Trade and other payables (b) EZREMEMRNRIE
Our trade and other payables primarily consist of KM E 5 & E A ER A
trade and bills payables, other payables related FEREEFENFIERIE
to agency services, accrued salaries, wages and NEE - RIEBRBE@ENE
benefits and amounts due to fellow subsidiaries. R RIE - EBEtEHE - T

B NAR I LA e FE A [R) 2B B8

NEIFIA -

The following table sets forth the aging analysis of TR H 7 EZ=2016F6A30
our trade and bills payables based on the invoice H K201512A31H # A
date as at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015: B 5 M08 RN R R

HZBMRRE DT

As at As at

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
20165 201545
6H30H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EHET) (AREBH®ZT)

Within 3 months 3ME AR 2,757.9 4,941.4
3 months to 6 months 31 A =6fEA 1,423.4 1,256.7
6 months to 1 year 6lE =14 1,608.9 1,378.5
Over 1 year 1F A E 5,894.5 5,330.7

11,684.7 12,907.3
The Group’s credit policies with its suppliers for the RAERR - AN B HEE HE
Period remained the same as that for 2015. 7 B 15 B BUK B20155F 4

EIB
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VI. INDEBTEDNESS

1. Borrowings

Our consolidated borrowings as at June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 for the purpose of calculating the

VI, &%

BE

H ZE2016%6A30H M2015412
A318 » RPAUETEARRQRIE

indebtedness of our Company were as follows: BHEHEEDT
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
H2016F R2015%F
6H30H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥BEETT) (AR®FET)
Current: D -
Short-term borrowings HHEE
Bank loans IRITER
unsecured MR 127.1 158.7
secured BER 50.6 21.0
Subtotal NEE 177.7 179.7
Add: current portion of m: REGBE®
long-term borrowings MENEB S 192.1 363.4
Subtotal INEF 369.8 543.1
Non-current: FEMED -
Long-term borrowings RAEEE
Bank loans IRITER
unsecured AR 242.3 397.1
secured BER 224.0 363.4
Subtotal et 466.3 760.5
Less: current portion of B RHAEER
long-term borrowings mENEB S 192.1 363.4
Subtotal NEE 274.2 397.1
Total #et 644.0 940.2
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Our short-term borrowings primarily include credit
borrowings, mortgage borrowings, pledge borrowings and
guarantee borrowings from commercial banks and other
financial institutions. As at June 30, 2016, our short-term
borrowings (including the current portion of long-term
borrowings) amounted to RMB369.8 million, accounting
for 57.4% of our total borrowings.

Our long-term borrowings primarily included credit,
mortgage and guarantee borrowings from commercial
banks and other financial institutions. These included
bank borrowings related to projects financed by export
seller’s credit, with the total balance of such borrowings
(including the current portion) amounting to approximately
RMB466.3 million as at June 30, 2016. As at June 30,
2016, our long-term borrowings (excluding the current
portion) amounted to RMB274.2 million, accounting
for 42.6% of our total borrowings. The decrease in our
interest-bearing borrowings to RMB644.0 million as at
June 30, 2016 was primarily due to the repayment of
short-term bank borrowings using cash generated from
our business operations with a view to reducing our
finance expenses.

As at June 30, 2016, certain of the Group’s borrowings
were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with an
aggregate net book value of RMB3.8 million and land of
RMB64.6 million.

As at December 31, 2015, certain of the Group’s
borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s
buildings with an aggregate net book value of RMB10.8
million and bank deposits of RMB11.0 million.

All borrowings were denominated in RMB, US$ and JPY
and were subject to interest rates ranging from 0.05% to
6.94% per annum.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

There had been no material defaults in repayment of our
bank borrowings and breaches of the finance covenants
during the Period.

The maturity profile of our interest-bearing borrowings as
at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 was as follows:

BEERWR DT

KA - RAEEERTER
THEBEENEQBER - TNE
EERBERONIERN °

= om

H E2016%6A30H M2015512
A318 ' HMWFrEEERHA
s

As at As at

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
M2016%F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EHET) (AR®BH®HT)

Within 1 year or on demand 1EF AN ERFER 369.8 543.1
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZE26F 159.7 90.0
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FE5F 110.9 303.8
After 5 years 5F A F 3.6 3.3
Total et 644.0 940.2

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. Gearing ratio is derived by dividing total borrowings
by total assets and multiplied by 100%. As of June 30,
2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.5%, 0.6 percentage
point lower than 2.1% as of December 31, 2015, mainly
due to the repayment of borrowings.

AEEBUERLETEEERE
I o FEIREE R TR EE BEER A
BEBEHIRA100%E H o &
Z2016%F6 A30H * "EEFEMIE
B EAB1.5%  BE E2015%F
128318 M2.1% T F£0.6f8 & %
2 FERRNEEREE -
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Contingent liabilities

The Group was involved in a number of legal proceedings
and claims against either the Company or the subsidiaries
of the Company in the ordinary course of business.
While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or
other proceedings cannot be determined at present, the
Directors believe that any resulting liabilities will not have a
material adverse impact on the financial position, liquidity
or operating results of the Group.

For our export-import agency services, the Group issued
irrevocable letters of guarantee through certain banks
to buyers for the benefit of sellers, which guarantee
the repayment of advances paid by the buyers, plus
interest if applicable, if and when the total or part of
the advances becomes repayable to the buyers from
the sellers in accordance with the relevant contracts.
These letters of guarantee are typically issued to provide
security to a buyer in paying an advance to a seller before
the actual goods are received, and the Group does not
receive separate consideration for issuing such letters of
guarantee. In order for the Group to issue these letters
of guarantee, the Group requires the sellers to provide
it with security interests on their assets or guarantees
from third parties that must be sufficient to cover the
total outstanding amount under the respective letters of
guarantee issued.

The borrowings were denominated in RMB, US$, HK$
and JPY, and were subject to interest rates ranging from
0.05% to 6.94% per annum.

VII. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to various types of risks, including
currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
competition risk and investment risk, etc., in the normal course
of our business. Our management monitors our exposure to
these risks to ensure appropriate measures are in place and

are implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases and our International Engineering
Contracting Business overseas and overseas financing
which give rise to receivables, payables and cash balances
that are denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of our operations, RMB, to which
these transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily US dollars and Euros. The Group entered
into foreign currency forward contracts to lock in the value
in RMB for some of our future cash receipts, primarily in
respect of the proceeds of our international engineering
contracting projects to reduce our currency risk and to
obtain certainty of forecasted income generated from
the deferred payments to be received from the project
owners under such projects. As a matter of policy and
in compliance with the PRC laws and regulations, we
are not allowed to widely engage in hedging activities.
Hence, our foreign currency hedging activities were
limited to these foreign currency forward contracts. Our
foreign currency forward contracts corresponded to our
business volume, i.e. the amounts and terms of such
contracts corresponded to the amounts of the foreign
currency expected to be received from our business.
The Group maintains and follows the internal policies
and controls for managing our Group’s use of derivative
financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

The interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings and
bank deposits. Borrowings bearing interests at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose us to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk, respectively.
The Company regularly reviews and monitors the mix
of our fixed and variable rate borrowings, only either
through managing the contractual terms of interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities or through the use
of interest rate swaps in order to manage our interest rate
risks. Like our currency risk hedging activities, our use of
interest rate swaps is also subject to our internal control
policy of derivative financial instruments.
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Credit Risk

Our credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. The Company has a credit policy in place
and our exposure to these credit risks is monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit terms extended to our
customers are determined on a case-by-case basis,
depending on credit assessment carried out by our
management. The credit terms granted to customers
of our Trading Business are normally about three to
six months. With respect to the Group’s International
Engineering Contracting Business, credit terms granted
are negotiated individually on a case-by-case basis and
are set forth in the relevant engineering contracting
contracts. The Company conducts monthly reviews of
credit risks as an internal control measure, and end-
of-credit-term period reviews to determine if the Group
needs to make any necessary provisions for credits
that we have extended. As to credit risk for trade and
other receivables, we first evaluate our customer’s credit
status and its ability to guarantee the payment through
establishing an appropriate business evaluation system.
Meanwhile, as part of our risk control mechanism on
trade and other receivables, we implemented the policy
to buy export credit insurance. For the Trading Business,
the Company and the trading subsidiaries are required to
buy unified export credit insurance from Sinosure; for the
International Engineering Contracting Business financed
by export seller’s credit, the Group typically buys export
credit insurance from Sinosure for its projects to meet its
financing needs as well as to control credit risk for trade
and other receivables. Our credit risk stems from trade
and other receivables relates to a number of independent
customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group has net current
liabilities at the balance sheet date. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk if it is unable to raise sufficient funds
to meet its financial obligations when they fall due.
To manage liquidity risk, the Company prepares both
annual and quarterly financial budgets which include
budgeting for capital and utilization of credit facilities to
plan and consolidate various financial resources to meet
the needs of its business, operations and development.
Furthermore, the Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents the management considered
adequate to finance its operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flow.

Competition Risk

The Group competes with both domestic and foreign
contractors in its International Engineering Contracting
Business. Competition generally stems from price,
design, variety of the services provided, service quality,
financial solutions, business models and environmental
standards. Similar to other Chinese contractors in the
industry, the Group faces competition from engineering
contractors with advanced technology from the developed
countries such as the U.S., Japan and various European
countries as the latter have relatively large competitive
advantages in global branch networks, information
collection, management and construction capabilities,
adaptability and brand name recognition, among other
areas. The Company will continue to leverage our
competitive advantage in pricing, especially for projects
in the developing countries, benefiting from competitive
labor cost and equipment price. The Company will also
continue to leverage the cooperation between the PRC
government and foreign governments (especially those of
the developing countries) to compete with both domestic
and foreign contractors.
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The Group competes with both Chinese and foreign
companies in our international trading business.
Competition with Chinese companies engaged in the
international trading business focuses on price, range
of products, and range of suppliers and customers,
whereas competition with foreign companies focuses
on the price and quality of products manufactured by
Chinese and foreign suppliers. While competition in
the international trading market is intense, given this
market is considerably vast, the Company will continue
to compete with the Chinese and foreign companies
by capitalizing on its financing capabilities and value-
adding services. With more than 30 years of operating
history in the international trading business, the Directors
believe the Group has an edge over the PRC competitors
within the industry in terms of our extensive sales and
marketing networks, long-established experiences in the
international trading market, welltrained business talents,
strong capabilities in providing financing solutions and
good reputation.

Investment Risk

Investment risk mainly represents any discrepancy
between actual return from investment and anticipated
return caused by factors which are out of the Company’s
control or contingent factors which cannot be ascertained
when making an investment decision. In addition, it also
associates with relevant advance payments for certain
projects, decrease of investment in infrastructure by
non-governmental investment institutions resulting from
changes in policies, and significant outlay of working
capital over extended period of time. Governmental
approvals from and regulatory compliance with
various governmental departments may also increase
uncertainties when implementing investment projects.
The Company has set up an investment review committee
and engaged independent third parties such as financial
advisors, taxation advisors and lawyers during the
investment process to carry out comprehensive due
diligence, analysis and deliberation with a view to
improving the level of decision-making in investment and
managing investment risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overseas Management Risk

Currently, most of the projects of the International
Engineering Contracting Business are conducted
overseas, especially in developing countries or less-
developed regions (including some countries and regions
in constant social or political turbulence). The International
Engineering Contracting Business is therefore subject
to constantly changing economic, regulatory, social and
political conditions in the overseas jurisdictions in which
we conduct business or operate our projects.

To the extent that the Group’s overseas business or
operation is affected by unexpected and adverse foreign
economic, regulatory, social and political conditions, the
Group may experience project disruptions, losses of
assets and personnel, as well as other indirect losses.
In some of the high-risk locations where the Group
has employees, business or operations, the Group may
incur additional costs in safeguarding our personnel and
assets. The Company typically seek to manage potential
losses through contractual arrangement which protects
us against liabilities due to force majeure and provides
for indemnities from project owners, subcontractors and
suppliers, as well as purchase of construction, installation
and engineering all-risks insurance and third-party liability
insurance.
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Project Risk

Project risk relates to risk associated with the projects
for our International Engineering Contracting Business.
While the Directors consider power, transportation and
telecommunications sectors to be our Core Sectors,
demand for the International Engineering Contracting
Business which is principally international in nature
depends on the general level of activity and growth in the
industries in which the Group operates and serves. The
actual portfolio of the engineering contracting projects
differs year from year due to many factors not within our
control, including but not limited to, general economic
conditions, government investment plans, demographic
trends, political stability, consumer confidence and
requirements for industries or markets access. Any
fluctuations in these macroscopic factors will have an
impact on the demand for the International Engineering
Contracting Business. They may lead to an increase or
a decrease of investment in and number of new projects
available to the Group, the type of projects that the
Group can undertake and delays in or cancellations of
the ongoing projects. While we take into consideration
projected costs and target profit margin during the
pricing process of our engineering contracting projects,
profitability of the International Engineering Contracting
Business may still be affected and our revenue may
experience fluctuations.

In addition, project owners and other contractual
counterparties of our International Engineering Contracting
Business may not be able to fulfil their contractual
obligations owed to the Group or the conditions precedent
to the contracts for the projects, which could negatively
impact the Group’s revenue, working capital, cash flows
and results of operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Safety and Quality Risk

Due to the nature of construction work involved in
our International Engineering Contracting Business, the
Group’s projects may involve certain inherently dangerous
activities, including operations on aerial platform,
underground construction, use of heavy machinery and
working with flammable and explosive materials. Despite
the fact that the Company ensures compliance with
the requisite safety requirements and standards, it is
subject to the inherent risks of geological catastrophes,
fire, toxic gas, equipment failure and explosion and so
on. Besides, the employees are subject to personal
risks caused by environment with unstable security.
Any personal injury or loss of life the employees may
suffer, damage to or destruction of properties and
equipment and other losses caused by force majeure
in the situations mentioned above would result in the
delay in the engineering contracting projects, extended
construction time and efforts of our management,
suspension of our operations or even imposition of legal
liabilities. The Company endeavors to lower its exposure
to the abovementioned potential risks associated with our
International Engineering Contracting Business by taking
measures including making contractual arrangements
with the project owners in the event of disruption to
the projects due to force majeure, seeking indemnities
from the project owners, subcontractors and suppliers,
purchasing construction, installation and engineering
all-risks insurance, third-party liability insurance and
personal accident insurance, strengthening our internal
control system to ensure a safe and high quality working
environment for our projects, as well as maintaining
close communications with the project owners and local
governmental authorities.
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10. Post-project Transfer Risk 10. IRBXZRMK

72

Our international engineering contracting projects
are contractually completed after the warranty period
expires and the project owner issues a final acceptance
certificate. During the course of use and operation by

BRAMBEREITRASEE EE R
B RIWAIAE XX 8B RKE
WEE2EAEEERERLE
BER c FIBEEEZERGEARK

the project owner, operational or quality issues may arise i TRER IS A AR
due to natural factors such as hurricanes and tsunamis - BBEEERAAENEEEE

or improper operation or maintenance by the project
owner’s operational staff. According to the contracts, the
Group is then no longer liable for any warranty obligations
or other liabilities. However, since some projects are
associated with national interests and people’s livelihood
or bear significant influences in the local areas, any
flaws or defects in quality that occur after the project
completion may adversely compromise our reputation,
as well as having a negative impact on customers’
overall evaluation on us. Some of the project owners may
require us to bear costs for continuous maintenances
or the replacement of relevant components, causing
us losses not foreseeable under the contracts. Since
corporate reputation is the cornerstone for our expansion
of markets, the Company will keep on stepping up
the training for the project owner’s operational staffs
and endeavor to enter into operational maintenance
support contracts with the project owners, so as to
enhance the operational and maintenance capabilities of
the project owners’ operational staffs and avoid or reduce
the quality issues caused by improper manual handling
as much as possible. At the same time, the Company
emphasizes on the cultivation of core markets and the
sustainable development of the business while attaching
importance to collecting opinions and comments from the
customers, actively communicating with clients, as well
as being committed to maintaining good social benefits
and corporate interests.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

11. Corruption Risk

Currently, the PRC government is strengthening its anti-
corruption efforts and governments of various countries
for which we have undertaken works are also enhancing
their regulatory efforts in anti-commercial bribery. Personal
non-compliance or corruption of any employee will
bring material adverse impact to the reputation of our
Company. Being an international engineering contractor
and service provider, the Group cannot avoid carrying out
necessary normal and work-related communications with
the PRC government, governments of countries where
our works are conducted, Chinese financial institutions
and project owners. During this process, we may be
exposed to the risks associated with personal non-
compliance of employees or even corruption risks. The
Company will continuously strengthen our internal control
and further improve its anti-corruption regime as well
as strengthening accountabilities. The Company will
continue to, at the same time, actively embark on staff’s
compliance trainings, so as to enhance the compliance
awareness of the staffs and increase their compliance
CONSCioUSNESS.

VII.PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK FOR THE
SECOND HALF OF THE YEAR

In the first half of the year, under a severe domestic and
overseas environment, the Company overcame difficulties
and pressures to maintain a steady and orderly development,
making a good start for the “13th Five-Year Plan”. In the
second half of 2016, the Company will make persistent
efforts and steadily push ahead with the implementation of its
business plans with the aim to achieve its annual targets and
strengthen itself for further development.
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To Ensure Stable Benefits of Engineering
Contracting Business

The Company will enhance studies on the country’s
“Going Global”, “One Belt and One Road” and other
strategies and initiatives, and strengthen efforts to
develop key areas and markets. Upon identifying the
“One Belt and One Road Project Repository (—#&—
P%18 B )", the Company will focus on key projects
according to business requirements.

The Company will continue to enhance supervision
over the projects under construction to ensure
project quality and safety.

The Company will continue to strengthen the
implementation of rules and regulations on
engineering contracting business and step up
its efforts on publicity and inspection to improve
professional project management.

The Company will further the use of project
procurement platform to effectively restrain project
activities and prevent purchasing risks, thereby to
promote a standardized and scientific procurement
process.

The Company will constantly optimize the EPC
industry chain and improve system integration
capability and the ability to offer comprehensive
solution packages.

The Company will study the characteristics of EPC
project operation and maintenance with the aim to
establish appropriate operation and maintenance
systems, the ways and approaches for integration
of construction and operation of projects classified
as assets and other project models such as PPP.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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(Z)IRE 5 R RBER AR

() To Accelerate the Transformation and Upgrade
of Trading and Service Business

The Company will continue to develop core products
and businesses. Vigorous efforts will be made to
develop high-end forging and casting goods, new
energy and other core business, to actively explore
promising businesses and products to enrich core
business areas and to accelerate the transformation of
trading business to transform the Group from a product
trader to a provider of product value-adding services.

The Company will strengthen collaboration. The
Company will explore the synergetic mechanism
between its trading and services segments and
engineering contracting business segment with the aim
to achieve a win-win situation for such segments by
leveraging their respective advantages and then develop
overseas markets with concerted efforts. The Company
will cooperate with the internal research institutes or
equipment manufacturers of SINOMACH Group to
exploit each other’'s advantages and convert scientific
and technological achievements into productive force.
The Company will strengthen cooperation with local
governments to seek new business opportunities in
both domestic and international market.

The Company will strengthen the construction of
overseas channels. The Company will strive to push
forward the construction of the regional trading
centers in Southeast Asia and other regions so as
to carry out localized operations and further explore
local markets, in order to alleviate the adverse effects
caused by the downturn of international trade. The
Company will exploit the geographical advantages of
its overseas subsidiaries to explore new cooperation
opportunities, new businesses, new products and
new markets.

The Company will strengthen risk control. In a grim
business environment, more efforts should be put to
tighten up the control over business risks by insisting
on strictly following the working mechanism of ex-
ante reviews, interim checks and ex-post evaluations
to stay alert of any possible risks.
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To Enhance the Support of Design Consulting
Business to Engineering Business

In respect of the design consulting business, in the
second half of 2016, the Company will follow its strategic
plan, continue to seize the opportunities for innovation
and development and avoid adverse effects so as to
strengthen its support for engineering business. It will
co-ordinate domestic and international markets, and
preserve traditional business advantages while enhancing
its capability for developing new businesses. Furthermore,
the Company will fully utilize its platforms to expand
overseas markets to pursue steady growth and achieve
stable development of its design consulting business.

To Steadily Expedite Investment Business

In the second half of 2016 and for some time after
that, CMEC will create an investment business platform
centered on China Everbest Development International
Limited and establish a management system on
investment business. Meanwhile, the Company will learn
from its experience in the implementation of the Thar
coal-electric integration project in Pakistan and discuss
issues occurring at different project phases with its
strategic partners (including SINOMACH Capital and other
investment institutions) so as to promote the sustainable
development of its investment business.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

SHARE CAPITAL

As of June 30, 2016, the total share capital of the Company
was RMB4,125,700,000, divided into 4,125,700,000 Shares
with nominal value of RMB1.00 each.

INTERIM DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend payment of interim dividends
for the Period.

INTERESTS, SHORT POSITIONS AND

SHARE OPTION OF THE DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As of June 30, 2016, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
senior management of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As of June 30, 2016, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporations or persons (other than the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company)
which had 5% or more interests and short positions in the
Shares or the underlying Shares as recorded in the register

FERREHEMATRRG R
MERODNERIXR

B £20165F6 H30R - BiEfaI & F 3k
ARBEDITRABAMBIAEMLTS
ANENE REIFHFLAEGRIE
336k 17 & #) & LM A AT AC 8k ¥k A X
I SHARBIAR 5% A EHEER Mok A B
FEIAL(BEF EFHARAKR

kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions and Short positions in the Shares

BITRABRKSN) WEFEWT -

RONFERKXR

Approximate
Percentage of

Approximate

Number of Issued  Shareholding Percentage of
Shares/ in the Relevant  Shareholding
Underlying Class of in the
Capacity/ Shares Held Shares  Total Shares
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of Interest (Share) (Note 1)(%) (Note 1)(%)
HERRG i)
BhIRE AgRe
FEERTRE / BREDL BRES L
RRER R &R 5%/ BRtE HERGHE (R) (Hiz£1) (%) (Fizt1) (%)
SINOMACH Domestic Shares  Interests of beneficial owner 3,217,430,000 100% 77.99%
Bl WA R and controlled corporation (Note 2)
EnBBAERR (Long position)
REEEER 3,217,430,000
(Hiztz)
(#2)
SSF H Shares Interests of beneficial owner 81,352,000 8.96% 1.97%
HRESHES Hik EnBBANER (Long position)
81,352,000
(#2)
78 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Approximate
Percentage of  Approximate
Number of Issued ~ Shareholding Percentage of
Shares/ in the Relevant  Shareholding

Underlying Class of in the

Capacity/ Shares Held Shares  Total Shares

Name of Shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of Interest (Share) (Note 1)(%) (Note 1)(%)
EERRSG R

BhIRE ayRE
FsERTRE/ BB O
KRER B4 &5 gt/ BEME RERGHE (K) (W) %) (Wit1)(%

BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee H Shares Nominee for another person 54,064,000 5.95% 1.31%
Company Limited Hi& F—HALZREA (Note 3)
(Long position)
54,064,000
(H#3)
(#2)

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust H Shares Trustee 54,064,000 5.95% 1.31%
Corporation Limited H% ZIEA (Note 3)
(Long position)
54,064,000
(Hit3)
(#2)

Cheah Capital Management Limited ~ H Shares Interests of controlled 54,064,000 5.95% 1.31%
NDEAERBRAR Hi% corporation (Note 3)
EREERR (Long position)
54,064,000
(H:t3)
(#2)

Cheah Company Limited H Shares Interests of controlled 54,064,000 5.95% 1.31%
NDERAR Hix corporation (Note 3)
XEEEER (Long position)
54,064,000
(Hi3)
(#2)
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Approximate
Percentage of  Approximate
Number of Issued ~ Shareholding Percentage of
Shares/ in the Relevant  Shareholding

Underlying Class of in the

Capacity/ Shares Held Shares  Total Shares

Name of Shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of Interest (Share) (Note 1)(%) (Note 1)(%)
EERRG R

BhIRE aykE
FsERTRE/ R F O

RRAH DigEdl 5%/ BRtE RERGHE (K) (Hiat1) (%) (Hiat1) (%)
Value Partners Group Limited H Shares Interests of controlled 54,064,000 5.95% 1.31%
EREEBRAA H corporation (Note 3)
REEERER (Long position)
54,064,000
(H#3)
(#2)
Cheah Cheng Hye H Shares Founder of a discretionary trust 54,064,000 5.95% 1.31%
#EE Hi& SREETEUA (Note 3)
(Long position)
54,064,000
(Hit3)
(#2)
To Hau Yin H Shares Interests of spouse 54,064,000 5.95% 1.31%
HEg HA EEER (Note 3)
(Long position)
54,064,000
(Ht3)
(#2)
Matthews International Capital H Shares Investment manager 73,672,000 8.11% 1.79%
Management, LLC Hi& RELE (Long position)
73,672,000
(#2)
80 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Approximate
Percentage of  Approximate
Number of Issued ~ Shareholding Percentage of
Shares/ in the Relevant  Shareholding

Underlying Class of in the

Capacity/ Shares Held Shares  Total Shares

Name of Shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of Interest (Share) (Note 1)(%) (Note 1)(%)
EERRSG R

BhIRE ayRE
FsERTRE/ BB O
KRER B4 &5 gt/ BEME RERGHE (K) (W) %) (Wit1)(%

JPMorgan Chase & Co. H Shares Interests of controlled 82,608,096 9.09% 2.00%
HAR corporation (Note 4)
REEEER (Long position)
82,608,096
(Hiita)
(#2)

408,000 0.04% 0.00%
(Note 5)
(Short position)
408,000
(Hits)

(%2)

Custodian 13,060,096 1.43% 0.32%
FEA (Note 6)
(interest in a
lending pool)
13,060,096
(Hiit6)
(AT BLAE R A7 #0
&)
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Number of Issued

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

Approximate
Percentage of

Shares/ in the Relevant  Shareholding
Underlying Class of in the
Capacity/ Shares Held Shares  Total Shares
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of Interest (Share) (Note 1)(%) (Note 1)(%)
EEER G R
BRI aeE
FEERTRE / BOEDL BOBEIL
RRAH gyl 5%/ BRtE RERGHE (K) (Hiat1) (%) (Hiat1) (%)
Morgan Stanley H Shares Interests of controlled 60,445,187 6.65% 1.47%
ERLHH Hix corporation (Note 7)
REEERER (Long position)
60,445,187
(Hz7)
(#2)
14,589,000 1.60% 0.35%
(Note 8)
(Short position)
14,589,000
(Hit8)
(%#)
GIC Private Limited H Shares Investment manager 45,454,000 5.00% 1.10%
H& REARE (Long position)
45,454,000
(#2)
Citigroup Inc. H Shares Interests of controlled 64,318,254 7.08% 1.56%
HI% corporation (Note 9)
ZREE#ER (Long position)
64,318,254
(Ht9)
(#2)
82 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Approximate
Percentage of  Approximate

Number of Issued ~ Shareholding Percentage of

Shares/ in the Relevant  Shareholding

Underlying Class of in the
Capacity/ Shares Held Shares  Total Shares
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares  Nature of Interest (Share) (Note 1)(%) (Note 1)(%)
EERRSG R
BRI ae e
FEERTRE / BREDL BOEI
RRAH DigngRl 5%/ ERtE RERGHE (R) (Hiat1) (%) (Frzt1) (%)
569,000 0.06% 0.01%

(Note 10)

(Short position)

569,000

(Hizt10)

(%)
Custodian 63,749,254 7.01% 1.55%

FTEA (Note 11)

(interestin a

lending pool)

63,749,254

(Hizt11)

(AT HLA R 17 #0

1)

Notes: Kt -

M

This percentage is calculated on the basis of the number of
underlying Shares/total Shares that had been issued by the
Company as of June 30, 2016.

SINOMACH was beneficially interested in 3,185,260,000
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 77.21% of our
total share capital. China United was beneficially interested in
32,170,000 Domestic Shares, representing approximately 0.78%
of our total share capital. Since China United is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of SINOMACH, SINOMACH is, therefore, deemed to
be interested in the Domestic Shares held by China United.
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i

The following shares which are referred to in the notes above represent
the same block of shares in which all the relevant parties are deemed
under the SFO to be interested.

(3)

The 54,064,000 Shares as referred to in note 3 above.

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Limited, as trustee of The
C H Cheah Family Trust, has 100% interest over BNP Paribas
Jersey Nominee Company Limited. BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee
Company Limited has 100% interest over Cheah Company
Limited which in turn has 100% interest over Cheah Capital
Management Limited. Cheah Capital Management Limited has
21.87% interest over Value Partners Group Limited which in
turn has 100% interest over Value Partners Hong Kong Limited.
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited has 100% interest over Value
Partners Limited.

The C H Cheah Family Trust was set up by Mr. Cheah Cheng
Hye. Madam To Hau Yin is the spouse of Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye
and accordingly is deemed to be interested in the 54,064,000
Shares.

The 82,608,096 Shares as referred to in note 4 above

Among these 82,608,096 Shares, 13,060,096 Shares were held
by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of JPMorgan Chase & Co., 734,000 Shares were held by J.P.
Morgan Clearing Corp, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
JPMorgan Chase & Co., 5,688,000 Shares were held by China
International Fund Management Co Ltd, an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co., 1,447,000 Shares
were held by JF International Management Inc., an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co., 27,886,000
Shares were held by JF Asset Management Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co., 2,288,000
Shares were held by JPMorgan Asset Management (Taiwan)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase
& Co., 6,000 Shares were held by J.P. Morgan Investment

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Management Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
JPMorgan Chase & Co. and 31,099,000 Shares were held by
J.P. Morgan Whitefriars Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of JPMorgan Chase & Co., 400,000 Shares were held by J.P.
Morgan Securities plc, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Accordingly, JPMorgan Chase & Co. is
deemed to be interested in the 82,608,096 Shares.

The 408,000 Shares as referred to in note 5 above

Among these 408,000 Shares, 8,000 Shares were held by J.P.
Morgan Whitefriars Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of JPMorgan Chase & Co., 400,000 Shares were held by J.P.
Morgan Securities plc, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Accordingly, JPMorgan Chase & Co. is
deemed to be interested in the 408,000 Shares.

These 13,060,096 Shares in lending pool were held by JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., a wholly-owned subsidiary of JPMorgan
Chase & Co. Accordingly, JPMorgan Chase & Co. is deemed
as the holder of Shares in lending pool owned by its aforesaid
subsidiary.

The 60,445,187 Shares as referred to in note 7 above

Among these 60,445,187 Shares, 483,734,231 Shares were
held by Morgan Stanley Investment Management Company,
an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley,
12,504,949 Shares were held by Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plc, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan
Stanley, 244,000 Shares were held by Morgan Stanley Capital
Services LLC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan
Stanley, 1,704,956 Shares were held by Morgan Stanley & Co.
LLC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley,
2,257,051 Shares were held by Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley
Securities Co., Ltd., an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
Morgan Stanley. Accordingly, Morgan Stanley is deemed to be
interested in 60,445,187 Shares.
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R % £60,445,1878 & 5 -
43,734,231 f B 10 i B2 AR &= 7 F 89
& IE 2 B I8 A FlMorgan Stanley
Investment Management Company
FT#5 A - 12,504,949 i 1) B E 1R
+ 73 FI & # 2 & BT & A FMorgan
Stanley & Co. International plcFt
¥ B - 244,0000% & 5 B E R +
% 2 & W B 2 7Morgan
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B~ 1,704,9560% A% 17 M EE AR £ £ A
KIfE % 2 E W B2 R]Morgan Stanley
& Co. LLCH #f A ~ 2,257,051 % i%
MEBEERTNFOEEFZENE
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(11)

The 14,589,000 Shares as referred to in note 8 above

Among these 14,589,000 Shares, 11,083,110 Shares were held
by Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley, 1,986,890 Shares were
held by Morgan Stanley Capital Services LLC, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley, 1,519,000 Shares were
held by Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Morgan Stanley. Accordingly, Morgan Stanley is
deemed to be interested in 14,589,000 Shares.

The 64,318,254 Shares as referred to in note 9 above

Among these 64,318,254 Shares, 63,749,254 Shares were
held by Citibank N.A., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Citigroup Inc., 569,000 Shares were held by Citigroup Global
Markets Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup
Inc. Accordingly, Citigroup Inc. is deemed to be interested in
64,318,254 Shares.

The 569,000 Shares as referred to in note 10 above

Among these 569,000 Shares, 389,000 Shares were held by
Citigroup Global Markets Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Citigroup Inc., 180,000 Shares were held by
Citigroup Global Markets Inc., an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Citigroup Inc. Accordingly, Citigroup Inc. is deemed
to be interested in 569,000 Shares.

These 63,749,254 Shares in lending pool were held by Citibank
N.A., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup Inc.
Accordingly, Citigroup Inc. is deemed as the holder of Shares
lending pool owned by its aforesaid subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, and as at June 30, 2016, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not
Directors, Supervisors or the chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,

@)

(1)

BEXWBEEIN

B EE8ATIt By 14,589,000 4% ik {9

R % $14,589,00008 & 7 -
11,083,1108% f& 17 i FZ AR+ 1 51l 69 ]
B2 & H}E A 7Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plcFT # & + 1,986,890
AR A% 17 BB EEAR = FH R A 52 2 B IR
‘A FIMorgan Stanley Capital Services
LLCFT 58 &1,519,0008% B 17 /B EE 1R
T 73 A B R # 2 & B8 2 ®]Morgan
Stanley & Co. LLCFT#5E o A » FE
1R+ FHF 48 = 7014,589,0008% A% 17
hEEERER -

B sEOF il H64,318,254 RX A% {5

R &% 564,318,254/ & 5 -
63,749,254% B {7 FCitigroup Inc.®)
2 &M B A FCitibank N.A.FT#F
A %569,0008% f% 1 B Citigroup Inc.
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R AEIFTHEA ° Bt - Citigroup Inc.
WAR A7 64,318,254 % R 15 o #E A 1
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% % 19 i Citigroup Inc. W & &
MEAREHEIRIREBAER QR AN
¥ A &180,0008% f% 15 HCitigroup
Inc.#) [ #& & & M & A &|Citigroup
Global Markets Inc.FriEa o At -
Citigroup Inc.# 18 7% 74569,000/% %
DHRERRER °

7 563,749,254 % 7] #t & L IR 17
Jh fCitigroup Inc. B & & 2 & [ B
A ACitibank N.AFT# A& - E It -
Citigroup Inc. ##% & B H _EtpfE A~
AITEE AT HHEE RO BB A ©

K #E E20164F6 A

30R F EFUWMABMEMAL (I IE
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KA R B SARRA R (0 7 B R IR
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ERATHBENERIORR  HERE
&7 M BB R I 533616 B Re 10 7% 1R

to be entered in the register referred to therein.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIRMRE IRRAERAT

Pt B R A T R SOR R ©



Corporate Governance and Other Information

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Period, the Company did not redeem any of its H
Shares listed on the Stock Exchange nor did the Company or
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises: Mr.
SUN Bai and Mr. ZHANG Chun as executive Directors; Mr.
WANG Zhian, Mr. YU Benli and Mr. ZHANG Fusheng as non-
executive Directors; and Mr. LIU Li, Ms. LIU Hongyu, Mr. FANG
Yongzhong and Mr. WU Tak Lung as INEDs.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. The Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code during the Period and up to the date of this report. The
Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Upon
specific enquiry of all the Directors and Supervisors, all the
Directors and Supervisors confirmed that they had complied
with the Model Code during the Period.

The Company also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance
by its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information or inside information
of the Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s
securities.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed sufficient number of INEDs
with appropriate professional qualifications, or appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has appointed a total of four INEDs: Mr. LIU Li, Ms.
LIU Hongyu, Mr. FANG Yongzhong and Mr. WU Tak Lung,
respectively.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Corporate Governance and Other Information
TEERRHMER

10. CHANGE TO INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS 10. EENEESEREE

AND SUPERVISORS

From April 2016, Mr. QUAN Huagiang, a Supervisor, has been
a standing member of the Party Committee of China National
Erzhong Group Co. and the chief accountant of China Erzhong
Group (Deyang) Heavy Industries Co., Ltd..

From June 2016, Mr. ZHANG Fusheng, a non-executive
Director, has been as a director of China CAMC Engineering
Co., Ltd. (h TEIR TR D BR A ), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002051).

On June 8, 2016, Mr. LIU Li, an INED, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the nomination and corporate governance committee and
members of the audit committee and the risk management
committee of China International Capital Corporation Limited
(FREBEE SRS BRAF), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3908). On August
11, 2016, Mr. LIU has been ceased as an independent director
of Langfang Development Co., Ltd. (BB¥53 R D AR A7),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600149).

From August 2016, Ms. LIU Hongyu, an INED, has been
ceased as an external supervisor of Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.
At RERITRRD B R AR]), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601169).

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, there
were no other changes to the Directors’ and Supervisors’
information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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11.

12.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of three members (two INEDs
and one non-executive Director), namely Mr. LIU Li, Ms. LIU
Hongyu and Mr. WANG Zhian. It has jointly reviewed with the
management on the accounting standards, and discussed
internal control and financial reporting matters (including
the review of the interim results) of the Group. The Group’s
interim results for the Period have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee considered that the interim
results are in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards, laws and regulations, and the Company has made
appropriate disclosures thereof.

COMPLIANCE WITH SANCTIONS
UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company and the
Directors have covenanted to the Stock Exchange that they
will not, directly or indirectly, (1) use any of the proceeds
from the Global Offering, or make such proceeds available to
any individual or entity, to fund any activities in or business
of or with (i) any individual or entity or (i) in any country or
territory, that at the time of such funding, is the target of
any sanctions administered by OFAC, or (2) engage in any
activity that is sanctionable under the ISA (as amended by the
Comprehensive Iran Sanctions, Accountability, and Divestment
Act of 2010) or the Executive Order 13590 (the “Executive
Order”) for so long as the ISA and Executive Order remain
in effect (the “Sanctions Undertakings”). The Directors
confirmed that both the Company and the Directors were in
compliance with the Sanctions Undertakings as at the date
of this report.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Considering the recent development in the sanctions landscape
on Iran, Holland & Knight LLP, the Company’s special counsel
on sanctions, has advised the Company, being a non-U.S.
company, the Company is now able to conduct business in
Iran. The remaining sanctions and restrictions with regard to
Iran will not substantially affect potential business activities
of the Company in Iran. The Company will be able to fully
engage potential business opportunities in a number of Iranian
industrial sectors. The Company will be able to engage in the
full spectrum of activities in these areas, from engineering,
procurement, and management to the supply of components,
services, and technology. For further details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on March
23, 2016.
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Report on Review of Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR S ST B R RN EFH RS

Independent review report
To the shareholders of China Machinery Engineering Corporation

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information set out on pages
94 to 158, which comprises the condensed consolidated statement
of financial position of China Machinery Engineering Corporation
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) as at June 30, 2016
and the related condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month
period then ended and explanatory notes. The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
require the preparation of a report on interim financial information
to be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and
International Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
(“IAS 34”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of this interim financial information in accordance
with IAS 34. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim financial information based on our review. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Report on Review of Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

TR RS ST B Hm RN B RS

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410 “Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries,
primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters,
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the accompanying interim condensed
consolidated financial statements are not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with IAS 34.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
August 30, 2016
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss - Unaudited

PSS OHERE R — REE

For the six months
ended June 30,

HEZ6A30HLENEA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEES) (REEET)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiF AR¥FT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
REVENUE ON 4 8,393,529 10,135,120
Cost of sales SHE M AR (7,182,684) (8,542,481)
Gross profit EF 1,210,845 1,592,639
Other revenue Hp A 4 6,784 1,293
Other income/(expenses), net HiA /(Fx) BE 4 (12,615) 38,362
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D HFAY (403,447) (411,782)
Administrative expenses THAY (312,829) (316,889)
Other operating income H A QU A 42,121 2,906
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS KEHR 530,859 906,529
Finance income BRI 5 558,067 366,191
Finance expenses MR 5 (35,079) (22,835)
Net finance income Rl NS 5 522,988 343,356
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE VA a7 R B
Associates e /NG] 5,735 (83)
Joint ventures F=Nl/NG] 4,021 285
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BB ATEF 1,063,603 1,250,087
Income tax FTiS T 7 (259,435) (312,894)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD REIR R 804,168 937,193
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the parent ISUNGIEZ =N 8 800,360 937,077
Non-controlling interests JEFERR RS 3,808 116
804,168 937,193
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BAREBEER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT  #&H AL
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXR#E (AR¥) 19 cents (2) 23 cents (%)

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income - Unaudited

PHREASHEE RE K - REFR

For the six months
ended June 30,

EZ6H30HLAEA
2016 2015
20165 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEET) (R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT AREFT
(Restated)
(ZFit)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7S HA R R 804,168 937,193
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitt4R & Wz
Other comprehensive income not to be ANGEREETHEE
reclassified into profit or loss B HE MRS W
in subsequent periods
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations BT ERTEX BRI (12,410) 1,510
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified ~ REAEHBEFHEE
into profit or loss in subsequent periods B HE AR S W
Changes in fair value of an available-for-sale AEHERERAREED
investment (194) 2,620
Exchange differences on translation of financial &GN B A 7 H) 815
statements of overseas subsidiaries WMREAMWER =5 5,975 (2,699)
Total comprehensive income for the period ZFAHMEGEEWNZFEEE 797,539 938,630
Attributable to: BER:
Owners of the parent BARIEA A 793,562 939,012
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR R i 3,977 (382)
797,539 938,630
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position - Unaudited

ARSI R — R

June 30, 2016 » 201656 H30H

=Zar

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
N2016F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REES) (25T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARB¥FT ARETFor
(Restated)
(Eat)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NEE 9 1,217,643 1,119,807
Investment properties B 21,513 22,035
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT AR E IR 10 1,776,397 1,792,357
Intangible assets mIEE 8,289 9,498
Investments in associates HE S N RIHNIRE 210,720 53,765
Investments in joint ventures HELDANFIHIEE 314,035 210,014
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b fE Y I8 13 330,391 72,676
Amounts due from contract customers JEW & [ FHIE 12 2,357,170 2,660,045
Deferred tax assets EETIBE E 353,083 358,698
Other non-current assets HIEmeh&EE 17 565,977 555,807
Total non-current assets EREBEEHE 7,155,218 6,854,702
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 11 665,237 448,504
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H At fE W IR 13 8,020,581 8,067,472
Amounts due from contract customers JEY & R F /B 12 2,376,266 2,947,620
Restricted deposits X R HITFR 572,214 566,265
Time deposits with original maturity — FRIAZIEABRE=EANE
over three months HAfFE 4,265,769 4,035,091
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESEEY 14 19,852,861 21,032,899
Total current assets RBEELRE 35,752,928 37,097,851
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE
Borrowings Ep= 16 369,846 543,155
Receipts in advance TEMGRIE 11,215,789 10,189,331
Trade and other payables B 5 R E AR IR 15 16,382,921 17,191,277
Defined benefit obligations REXmETE 31,807 34,374
Tax payable JE S 18 209,966 565,687
Total current liabilities REBEEHEE 28,210,329 28,523,824
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 7,542,599 8,574,027
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEAERABAG
CURRENT LIABILITIES 14,697,817 15,428,729
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position - Unaudited
PHIFSER S GBI SRR T’k — REEET

June 30, 2016 » 201656 A30H

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
20164 R20154F
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) (&)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AB®FT ARETFT
(Restated)
(Fih)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EELAERRDEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 14,697,817 15,428,729
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Borrowings = 16 274,141 397,078
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAFER IR 15 18,328 73,959
Defined benefit obligations REX TS 386,280 384,812
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIREE 28,368 26,439
Total non-current liabilities FRBAEHAE 707,117 882,288
Net assets BEE 13,990,700 14,546,441
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 18 4,125,700 4,125,700
Reserves E = 19 9,815,468 10,375,186
Total equity attributable to BRREAABLESAE
owners of the parent 13,941,168 14,500,886
Non-controlling interests FERER 49,532 45,555
Total equity ST 13,990,700 14,546,441
Director Sun Bai Director Zhang Chun
=S %M1 2= RZ
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity - Unaudited
HHAS S RS ER — REEST

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRARE AR
Available-
for-sale
investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued Capital revaluation  surplus fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
AfthE
REEfH  tERER  ENRE
BRRE  EARRE fie  Ee R REEH Nt FBREE  BRER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETFL ARRTT ARETR ARETL ARKFr ARBTL ARETZ ARETZ
At January 1, 2016 (Restated) ~ RA2016F1A18 (Eit) 4,125,700 3,370,907 2,142 892,246 17,430 6,092,461 14,500,886 45,555 14,546,441
Profit for the period AEERR > = - - - 800,360 800,360 3,808 804,168
Other comprehensive income RSB EfEAKE
for the period
Exchange differences BRENEES
on translation of foreign
operations - - - - 5,806 - 5,806 169 5,975
Remeasurement losses on REXREREMHE
defined beneft obligations, BB 5k
net of tax - - - - - (124100 (12,410) - (12410)
Changes in fair value of an A ERE
avalable-for-sale investment DMEEED - - (194) - - - (194) - (194)
Total comprefiensive income ~ AHEEA KRS
for the period - - (194) - 5806 787,950 793,562 3977 797,539
Business combination under A— T ERAH
common control - (532,678) - - - - (532,678) - (532,678)
Dividends paid to shareholders ~ FFAAGREHRE
of the Company - - - - - (820,602)  (820,602) - (820,602)
At June 30, 2016 2016464308 4,125,700 2,838,229 1,948 892,246 23,236 6,059,809 13,941,168 49,532 13,990,700

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity - Unaudited
HEIS SRS R — REERT

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRAEE AR
Avallable-
for-sale  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued Capital  investment surplus ~ fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve  revaluation reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total  interests equity
e
REEf EeRR  ENED
BEARE  ERER 1 BN ¢ il REEN Nt FERER  BREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NEETT AEBTT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFI
At January 1, 2015 Ro015E1A1H 4125700 3420914 1,084 701,362 5620 4,881,689 13,136,369 26,162 13,162,531
Business combination under A5 THERAR
common control - 108,163 - - 8§ 111200 214,421 7 225,538
At January 1, 2015(Restated) R2015E1A1R (Bi) 4,125,700 3,624,077 1,084 701,362 5628 4,992,939 13,350,790 37,279 13,388,069
Profit for the period ABRER = = = - - 0T 98017 116 937,193
Other comprenensive income ~ AEIRE (R4 I
for the period - - - - - - - - -
Exchange differences NERRTEEE
on tranglation of foreign
operations - - - - (2,19) - (2,19) (498) (2,699)
Remeasurement gains on REXREBENTE
defined benefit obligations, & Hitk
net of tax - - - - - 1,510 1,610 - 1,510
Changes In fair value of an At ERE
available-for-sale investment ~~~ A#EEEY - - 2620 - - - 2,620 - 2,620
Total comprehensive income il et
for the period - - 2,620 - (2,195 938587 939,012 (382) 938,630
Capital contrioution from a IEERBERNERREA
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - - 16,450 16,450
Dividends paid to then A FERE—E5T
sharenolder of an entity WEEERRNRE
acquired under common
control - - - - - (A9487)  (49,487) - (49,487
Dividends paid to shareholders I FAARIRERIEE
of the Company - - - - - (838,755  (838,759) - (838,759)
Dividends paid to non-controling 4 FHEA I3
shareholders of subsidiaries RREES - - - - - - - (2,156) (2,156)
At June 30, 2015 #2015%6A30F 4125700 3,524,077 3,704 701362 3433 5,043,284 13,401,560 51,191 13,452,751
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow - Unaudited
MER — AEHF

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

A SHEE

Six months ended June 30,

BZ6A30H L~EA
2016 2015
20165 2015%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(K& (REEE)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi AREFT ANEEFT
(Restated)
(Et)
CASH FLOWS FROM REREZHNRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: BEL AR - 1,063,603 1,250,087
Adjustments for: HEIEH
Finance costs B RS RRR 23,014 10,390
Foreign exchange differences, net PE i Z R F (236,638) (17,837)
Share of profits and losses of associates FE(GEA A R R F R B8 (5,735) 83
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures [BihE &R RGEF REE (4,021) (285)
Interest income FEHA 5(a) (204,840) (268,285)
Net losses on disposal of items of BREWE  BENMKREEER
property, plant and equipment BRFE 4 1,045 26
Net losses on disposal of items of REEMEFEEREN
other intangible assets BAFE 4 = 76
Net gain on disposal of an BEAHHERENKREFE
available-for-sale investment 4 - (42)
Net losses/(gains) on foreign currency forward — EERSMNEA R & FIl & 4 5
exchange contracts and interest rate swaps Bk /(W) 28 4 14,177 (30,107)
Depreciation e 5(b) 24,386 22,808
Amortisation B 5(b) 22,360 22,015
Reversal of impairment AR 5(b) (42,421) (3,006)
654,930 985,923
Increase in inventories FEEA (216,733) (461,018)
Decrease in amounts due from B A RAE P FIER D
contract customers 919,746 1,245,804
Decrease in trade and other receivables g 5 REMERFIBRD 139,261 252,250
Increase in receipts in advance FEUFRIEE N 1,026,458 1,261,413
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMERNZIERD (1,703,924) (675,820)
Decrease in defined benefit REX BB
obligations (1,099) (11,640)
Cash generated from operations BT ELE IR S 818,639 2,596,912
Income tax paid BRAER (607,612) (484,773)
Net cash flows from operating activities RERBELENRERETFE 211,027 2,112,139

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow - Unaudited
PHISHSHE S RER — KREEF

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

Six months ended June 30,

BZ6A30H L~<EA
2016 2015
20165 2015%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RIEEE) (REEE)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi AREFT AREF T
(Restated)
(FEt)
CASH FLOWS FROM REREFHNRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2B 215,100 268,285
Purchases of items of property, REWE BEKXEHER
plant and equipment (122,770) (107,656)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments B B At H &84 (10,428) (200,000)
Purchases of preference shares BERLR (266,119) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of REWE  BERZHEHREH
property, plant and equipment iS5 E 25 17
Proceeds from disposal of other REHEMENEENMENIE
intangible assets - 444
Proceeds from disposal of BEAHLERENFENE
available-for-sale investments - 238
Proceeds from/(payments for) settlement of 452 iz HISNE & 7] 2 Fi = b HR K
forward exchange contracts and FiissE / (F30)
interest rate swaps (11,195) 5,850
Additions of prepaid land lease payments nEREMLHES (3,524) -
Additions of other intangible assets AEHMEREE (382) (728)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under WS B — 4= 5 A BT B A A
common control (532,678) -
Investments in joint ventures HEEDEINRE (100,000) (50,000)
Investments in associates HHERAINERE (151,220 (90,577)
Placing of restricted deposits TR IR (21,605) (220,749
Proceeds from redemption of BEXR 57505308
restricted deposits 15,656 175,148
Placing of non-pledged time deposits GHREABERRLIHBEBE
with original maturity of over three months =1 A )L T HIFER
when acquired (4,515,826) (5,106,123)
Proceeds from redemption of non-pledged & BB B R 5HIR
time deposits with original maturity of A= & A /IR
over three months when acquired THEHFEHE 4,285,148 3,784,277
Repayment of loans from an associate BEBE N AEK = 6,000
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREBHFMAME S REFE (1,219,818) (1,535,574)
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow - Unaudited

PHIFHEHRERER — REFaT

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

Six months ended June 30,

HZ6H30RE~EA
2016 2015
20164 2015%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REGHE) (REEE)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(Fih)
CASH FLOWS FROM RERMEZHNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings G BB RIE 351,154 844,302
Repayment of borrowings BEREE (647,400) (1,026,921)
Capital contribution from non-controlling FEFRIR IR VB AR A
shareholders - 16,450
Dividends paid BEARE = (42,526)
Interest paid REPEE) (18,592) (17,664)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BMEEYMANRESREFH (314,838) (226,359)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN fiﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬂ%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in,/Ghd) B (1,323,629) 350,206
Cash and cash equivalents at REBNNRE &
beginning of period ReEEY 21,032,899 18,806,778
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREEHNEEFH
changes, net 143,591 (107,249)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REBRNRER
AT END OF PERIOD BEEEY 19,852,861 19,049,735
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERRELEEBMREI N
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITHER 24,690,844 24,681,322
Restricted deposits balances IR HIIFE A (572,214) (352,642)
Time deposits with original [RIGEIHA B BB =8 A K9
maturity of over three months EHER (4,265,769) (5,278,945)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BenExRmiFAE R
in the statement of cash flows HeEEY 19,852,861 19,049,735

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

REFTH RSO B RRMEE

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=2016%6530H 1L/~ & A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Machinery Engineering Corporation (the “Company”) is
a joint stock company with limited liability established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The registered office
of the Company is located at No. 178 Guanganmenwai Street,
Beijing, PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are mainly
engaged in international construction contracting business
and trading business.

On December 21, 2012, the Company became listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("HKSE”). The Company issued 718,000,000 H shares at
HK$5.40 per share by initial public offering (“IPO”) to investors
in Hong Kong and overseas. Pursuant to the IPO, a total of
71,800,000 domestic state-owned shares of RMB1.00 each
owned by China National Machinery Industry Corporation
(“SINOMACH”) and China United Engineering Corporation
(“China United”) in aggregate were converted into H shares on
a one-for-one basis and transferred to the National Council for
Social Security Fund of the PRC (“SSF”).

On January 2, 2013, the over-allotment option granted by the
Company was fully exercised, and the Company issued and
allotted an aggregate of 107,700,000 H shares at HK$5.40
per share. Accordingly, a total of 10,770,000 domestic state-
owned shares of RMB1.00 each owned by SINOMACH and
China United were converted into H shares on a one-for-one
basis and transferred to the SSF. As at December 31, 2015, a
total of 908,270,000 H shares were listed on the HKSE.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the holding company and the ultimate holding company of
the Company was SINOMACH, which was established in the
People’s Republic of China.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AEFTP RS U B RRMEE

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=201656430H 1L/~ & A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (f& S A FERAS) -

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2016 have been
prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard
(IAS”) 34 Interim Financial Reporting and the disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements do not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read
in conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements as
at 31 December 2015. The interim condensed consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except when

otherwise indicated.

Merger accounting for business combinations under

common control

The Company acquired the 100% equity interest in China
National Complete Engineering Corporation (“CNCEC”) in
May 2016 and 100% equity interest in China Jikan Research
Institute of Engineering Investigations and Design Co., Ltd.
(“Jikan Research Institute”) in September 2015. The Company,
CNCEC and Jikan Research Institute are under the common
control of SINOMACH both before and after the acquisitions
and such controls are not transitory. Thus, the acquisitions
are considered to be business combinations under common
control and merger accounting basis is adopted. Accordingly,
the Company’s unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2016
and June 30, 2015 include the financial statements of each
of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination. The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of the acquirers’ interest
in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of the

common control combination.

The Company’s comparative unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended
June 30, 2015 is restated to include the financial statements
of CNCEC and Jikan Research Institute retrospectively under

merger accounting basis as mentioned above.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 21 REEE (F)

2.2 IMPACT OF

Merger accounting for business combinations under
common control (Continued)

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting are recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

NEW AND AMENDED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those used in the preparation of the
Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015, except for the adoption of the new and
revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
as of 1 January 2016. The Group has not early adopted any
other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been
issued but is not yet effective. These new and revised IFRSs
do not impact the interim condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The nature and the impact of each amendment or interpretation
are described below:

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose
activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue applying
most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of IFRS. Entities
that adopt IFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral
accounts as separate line items on the statement of financial
position and present movements in these account balances
as separate line items in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The standard requires
disclosure of the nature of, and risks associated with, the
entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on
its financial statements. IFRS 14 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Since the Group is an
existing IFRS preparer and is not involved in any rate-regulated
activities, this standard does not apply.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AEERT ARG ES P RRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

22IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED 2.2 #E] RIS FT B BR B 35 3R &5 2

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements:
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator
accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation,
in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business, must apply the relevant IFRS 3 Business
Combinations principles for business combination accounting.
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in
a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint operation if joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to
IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when
the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling

party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial
interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional
interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments
do not have any impact on the Group as there has been no
interest acquired in a joint operation during the period.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

22IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED 2.2 #E] R LIS FT B BR B 35 3R &5 2

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating a business (of which the asset is a part) rather
than the economic benefits that are consumed through use
of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise
intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
early adoption permitted. These amendments do not have
any impact to the Group given that the Group has not used a
revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

The amendments change the accounting requirements for
biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants.
Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope
of IAS 41 Agriculture. Instead, IAS 16 will apply. After initial
recognition, bearer plants will be measured under IAS 16 at
accumulated cost (before maturity) and using either the cost
model or revaluation model (after maturity). The amendments
also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will
remain in the scope of IAS 41 measured at fair value less
costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants,
IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure
of Government Assistance will apply. The amendments are
retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments do not have any impact to the Group as the
Group does not have any bearer plants.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

22IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED 2.2 #E] RIS FT B BR B 35 3R &5 2

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying IFRS and electing to change to the equity
method in their separate financial statements will have to
apply that change retrospectively. First-time adopters of IFRS
electing to use the equity method in their separate financial
statements will be required to apply this method from the
date of transition to IFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with
early adoption permitted. These amendments do not have
any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle (Amendments
to a number of IFRSs)

These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. They include:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations: Assets (or disposal groups) are generally
disposed of either through sale or distribution to owners. The
amendment clarifies that changing from one of these disposal
methods to the other would not be considered a new plan
of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the
requirements in IFRS 5. This amendment must be applied
prospectively.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

22IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED 2.2 #E] R LIS FT B BR B 35 3R &5 2

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle (Amendents
to a number of IFRSs) (Continued)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: (i) Servicing
contracts: The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in
a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee
and the arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in IFRS 7 in order to assess whether the
disclosures are required. The assessment of which servicing
contracts constitute continuing involvement must be done
retrospectively. However, the required disclosures would not
need to be provided for any period beginning before the annual
period in which the entity first applies the amendments. (i)
Applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 to condensed
interim financial statements: The amendment clarifies that the
offsetting disclosure requirements do not apply to condensed
interim financial statements, unless such disclosures provide
a significant update to the information reported in the most
recent annual report. This amendment must be applied
retrospectively.

IAS 719 Employee Benefits: The amendment clarifies that
market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed
based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When
there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in
that currency, government bond rates must be used. This
amendment must be applied prospectively.
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22IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: The amendment clarifies
that the required interim disclosures must either be in the
interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference
between the interim financial statements and wherever they
are included within the interim financial report (e.g., in the
management commentary or risk report). The other information
within the interim financial report must be available to users on
the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the
same time. This amendment must be applied retrospectively.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly
change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments clarify:

e  The materiality requirements in IAS 1

e  That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss
and OCI and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated

e  That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements

e That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method must be presented
in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
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RETT P HIE S Ot B TS AR MY

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

REFTH RSO B RRMEE

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

22IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDED 2.2 #E] R LIS FT B BR B 35 3R &5 2

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that
apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement
of financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and
OCI. These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments do not have any impact on
the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments address issues that have arisen in applying
the investment entities exception under IFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements. The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify
that the exemption from presenting consolidated financial
statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an
investment entity, when the investment entity measures all of
its subsidiaries at fair value.

Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that only a
subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment
entity itself and that provides support services to the
investment entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an
investment entity are measured at fair value. The amendments
to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures allow
the investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair
value measurement applied by the investment entity associate
or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries.

These amendments must be applied retrospectively and are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments do
not have any impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the consolidation exception.

AW e (&)

B E EREIRNET [ RER
& (&)

BEAN - ZFEFTEE T EMBARRE
M&Eﬁ&H@fA% s 7% = 51 B
BNFTREFTE AR E K - ZFBFTR
2016451 A1 Bk 2 & FB R FE HifH
R ATIRATERA - ZEERTHAE
B AT 2 -

I B Bt 35 R S 22 AU 51055 ~ EIFR B
BREERE125 R E RS 5T 2R
28 (BR]) [ REER : ERAR
SHIMER ]

ZEERTHA T RIB B B RS L
ARG E M BREREARETR
FISME RS E LR R R o BIBR B 753
ERHE105EERT R %l’&?
ERRSREBBEAMNEA
ZIEE %hz’&fﬁﬁ@afzﬁ%a‘ﬁﬁﬁ

AR ET 2R A W
iﬁi’%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁi"

BESN - BIRR B 75 3R S R E105R 918
RIBR ERERAAFUNKREE
B BERZBREBBEHSREN
Bﬁ%"ﬂ KREBRBOMMAHEMKB

NABRARBEFE BRI E
AIZE28SRMIER] [REE AR R A&
RAIZBREBEIAHAREEEERAER
AR REREBRBBEQREAE
REAHEMBAREGZERANRAE
EFtE -

FZERTWAEBWER - R20165F1
ﬂ1 Ak BRI FER AR AR - A
AT - HRAEBE W EERGE
BISMER, - ZFIEFTH AR E I &EF
A2 o

Interim Report 2016
ZE-AFHRHRE

111



Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs 2.3 CHEMEE RE R BRI
HEZEL
The Group has not applied the following new and revised REEREPBEHERALEREAUT
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in its B EME MR AR FTE] MAEIEETE
financial statements. BREA TS SRS AR o
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BIBR B TR SR Y Bl 5058 SHTA?
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BLH RS ERE105RE AELLAEHL) 7]
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its R et E 085 FAENGZ
Associate or Joint Venture* (537) BEHERTE
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB RREERS15E  BFARMA?
Customers?
IFRS 16 Leases’ AENBRSLAE0Y  AE
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’ B e ERE7% (B:]) REES
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred B e ERE12% (85]) FALEELERET
Tax Assets for EEFEEE
Unrealised losses’
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and B R Bt FR R 2 Y B 5 05 URGBEBZ 15
Measurement of (E3T) REMHHRiTE?
Share-based Payment
Transactions?
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 g R2017F1R1R k2 B AE 2 F 8
HARI A K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 R2018F1A1R 2 RABZEFE
HARI A K
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 8 R2019F1A1ESZRABRZEE
HARI A K
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for 4 i) % 7B TE o il 14 A5 28 B HAME AT LR AR
adoption
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the RNEBIEE I EHT REEFT BB
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. B &SR RN E IR FERR 2 5228 -
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 25 sERHM -

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into

business units based on their products and services and has

three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)

Construction contracts: this segment mainly undertakes
engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”)
contracting business of overseas infrastructure-related
construction projects (including hydropower, thermal
power or other engineering projects) in various countries.

Trading business: this segment mainly engages in the
business of importing and/or exporting various machinery,
electrical and instrumental products for domestic and
overseas customers.

Service business: this segment mainly engages in
providing export-import agency services, exhibition
services, design services, tendering agency services and
logistics services.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

REBTH ISR S Ot R R MiaE
For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=201656430H 1L/~ & A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
share of profits and losses of an associate and joint ventures,
interest income from bank deposits, finance costs related to
defined benefit plans, dividend income, fair value gains/losses
from the Group’s financial instruments as well as head office
and corporate income/expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates and joint
ventures, prepaid land lease payments, intangible assets,
deferred tax assets, time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group

basis.

Segment liabilities exclude defined benefit obligations, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed

on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=2016%6530H 1L/~ & A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

3. OPERATING SEGMENT REFEER (4F)

(CONTINUED)

INFORMATION 3.

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) 2EPWA > 25 - BEEREE

Six months ended June 30, 2016
HZ2016F6H30H 1L A8 A

Construction Trading Service
contracts business business Total
BERR BREK PR &5t
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REHEF) (REE) (REHE) (REEE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Segment revenue: k-1 ONE
Sales to external customers HETINEEP 4,544,033 3,376,544 472,952 8,393,529
Intersegment sales AEPEEE - 109,508 249,354 358,862
Reportable segment revenue AREDBRA 4,544,033 3,486,052 722,306 8,752,391
Reportable segment profit RS BEF 684,034 40,038 28,273 752,345
Finance income on receivables W R P FIEH)
from customers ABBA 75,650 5,028 - 80,678
Finance costs B 7Pk R 2,436 13,994 6,584 23,014
Depreciation and amortisation e R#H 673 497 1,665 2,835
Provision/(reversal of provision) REEBRE/
of impairment losses (BERmE)
— Trade and other receivables - B R EmREYGR (93,037) (596) 14,711 (78,922)
— Amounts due from contract - EREREFHE
customers 36,501 - - 36,501
As at June 30, 2016
HZ2016F6H30H
Construction Trading Service
contracts business business Total
BESE E5¥K PR CH)
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REBEG) (K& (REHE) (REET)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Reportable segment assets MHEDTBEE 13,006,022 3,217,951 1,265,797 17,489,770
Reportable segment liabilites  AR&E 2 HEE 24,536,407 3,652,277 4,118,875 32,307,559

Capital expenditure for the period is unallocated to
segments as such expenditure is managed on a group

basis.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

3. OPERATING SEGMENT

AARESIR)

INFORMATION 3. REQIER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (@ 27HVUA 2B - EERERE
(continued) (#&)

Six months ended June 30, 2015 (Restated)
BZ2015F6A30B 1L~ EA (i)

Construction Trading Service
contracts business business Total
BESH EOES FRI5 %% G

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFET) (REFE:) (REE=E) (REEZE:)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETFT  AREFT  ANEEFT  AREFT

Segment revenue: DEBA
Sales to external customers HETINIER 5,675,242 3,902,431 557,447 10,135,120
Intersegment sales HEREEE = 70,435 146,621 217,056
Reportable segment revenue EESESE TGN 5,675,242 3,972,866 704,068 10,352,176
Reportable segment profit ARE D HEF 851,043 223,934 61,688 1,136,665
Finance income on receivables W E F AR BT S I
from customers 79,369 700 - 80,069
Finance costs B 7 Ak 7K 552 3,981 5,857 10,390
Depreciation and amortisation HE R#H 567 261 1,833 2,661
Provision/(reversal provision) BEEEREE/
of impairment losses (Btfm)
- Trade and other receivables - B 5 REMBYGE 14,134 (1,240) 1,602 14,396
— Amounts due from contract - BRAREFHE
customers (17,402) - - (17,402)
As at December 31, 2015 (Restated)
M2015F12A31H (&)
Construction Trading Service
contracts business business Total
BEAR EUES S PREES A&t
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER) (RIEER) (REEER)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ANREFT ANEEFT
Reportable segment assets WHEPHEE 13,143,699 3,777,228 1,020,513 17,941,440
Reportable segment liabilities AHEHSHER 23,036,322 4,970,525 4,209,109 32,215,956
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 25 sERHM -

3. OPERATING SEGMENT
(CONTINUED)

INFORMATION 3.

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit/loss, assets and liabilities

AARESIR)

REDWER (&)
(b) AHEDTWBA -~ EF
B -EEREBENER

For the six months
ended June 30,

BIZ6H30R IL~fE B
2016 2015
20165 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEES) (REE=EET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFor
(Restated)
(Eit)
Revenue: WA :
Reportable segment revenue Al R D EBUA 8,752,391 10,352,176
Elimination of intersegment revenue DR A S (358,862) (217,056)
8,393,529 10,135,120
Profit: Al
Reportable segment profit AR E D EE 752,345 1,136,665
Share of profits and losses of associates FERER & R BRI &R 5,735 (83)
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures EiEaERRRTRER 4,021 285
Other income/(expenses), net — unallocated Hipl A /(Ax%) F58
— RN# 4,247 1,266
Other operating income/(expenses) Hp@g A /()

— unallocated — Rp# (300) =
Interest income B A 204,840 268,285
Interest cost recognised in respect of HREX RG]

defined benefit retirement plans TR FI B A A (6,965) (6,920)
Foreign exchange unallocated gains/(losses), RoElE s/ (E1E)

net HEE 143,591 (107,249)
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (43,911) (42,162)
Profit before taxation B 253 Bl i A 1,063,603 1,250,087

Interim Report 2016
ZE-AFHRHRE

117



Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AEERT ARG ES P RRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. REQIER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit/loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

(b) T #H &

SEBABRE

B BEEREBNER (A)

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164F 20155
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Ri&ES) (Fz&&t)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETFT
(Restated)
(F|at)
Assets: EE

Reportable segment assets ARG D HEE 17,489,770 17,941,440
Elimination of intersegment receivables 5 30 [ & Uk 30 I8 1K £ (4,046,534) (3,821,156)
13,443,236 14,120,284
Restricted deposits IR 17 3K 572,214 566,265

Time deposits with original maturity RBE B R BB =1EA/
over three months EHFER 4,265,769 4,035,091
Cash and cash equivalents Re B eFEY 19,852,861 21,032,899
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KRS 1,217,643 1,119,807
Prepaid land lease payments TS T AR E IR 1,776,397 1,792,357
Intangible assets ﬁﬁﬁiéf?i‘ 8,289 9,498
Investments in joint ventures HEERNANKE 314,035 210,014
Investments in associates HEZ N AR E 210,720 53,765
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B 353,083 358,698
Other non-current assets BEMIERBEE 565,977 555,807
Other unallocated assets HtADBEEE 327,922 98,068
42,908,146 43,952,553
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

SETP RSO B RRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 25 sERHM -

3. OPERATING SEGMENT
(CONTINUED)

INFORMATION

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit/loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

REDWER (&)

(b) I

AARESIR)

EoMBA - BRE

B -EEREBNER (F)

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RS (F&2&ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFT
(Restated)
(&)

Liabilities: =R
Reportable segment liabilities AmESEAE 32,307,559 32,215,956
Elimination of intersegment payables 73 EB [ FE 15 SRIE L 8K (4,046,534) (3,821,156)
28,261,025 28,394,800
Defined benefit obligations REREES 418,087 419,186
Tax payable FERBEIE 209,966 565,687
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBEE 28,368 26,439
28,917,446 29,406,112
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
R ETTHHIEG A S G iR M et

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 3. REQI|ER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Geographical information (c) HhEEEER

REIEBEFHWA

Revenue from external customers

For the six months
ended June 30,

B ZE6H30H LA A
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEFET) (CREEERT)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Mainland China Fp B K 3,046,672 3,604,533
Pakistan EEHA 818,858 319,340
The Republic of Angola S h FE AN E 672,919 94,423
Venezuela Z IR 614,912 1,536,392
Hong Kong BB 432,730 89,664
The Republic of Iraq s e AN EY 302,666 270,425
Serbia ERMgED 275,232 129,019
Cameroon 2 25 p 269,152 27,911
Maldives BRRE 241,069 77,115
United States e 237,011 324,075
Others Hi 1,482,308 3,662,223
8,393,529 10,135,120

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers.
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

3. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Geographical information (continued)

3. REIHWEH (&)

(c) HEEHER (&)

Specified non-current assets REFRBDEE
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
20164 20155
6 H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEET) (fez&5t)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
(Restated)
(Fit)
Mainland China B K BE 3,016,418 3,008,837
Others Hith 7,424 7,635
3,023,842 3,016,372

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

The Group did not derive more than 10% of its total
revenue from any single customer for the six months
ended June 30, 2016. Revenues generated from one
customer derived from the construction contracts
segment which amounted to more than 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2015
was RMB1,459,791,000.

A LI B A E AR TR A R
HE5  TeESBTARELHE
& -

(d) EREEEFHNEHR

E E20169F6 A30H 1L/~ @ A -
AEBWEAARNE-—KFEL
B A10% LA £ o B 201556
AB0B L NERAKREREEER D
e — BB P EEMRAGEAR
EEKRARI0%IA L BARE
1,459,791,0007T °
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

RESEFTTHHIR S Ot B RFRMIEE
For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016463308 1F/~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

4. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES), NET 4. WA~ Hblg A (BA%) B8

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WAREHARNNBRREBERE ST
allowances for returns and trade discounts; an appropriate HNEEERERFE BESRE
proportion of contract revenue of construction contracts; the HERWA -~ FIRERBEEARE
value of services rendered; and gross rental income received Wk EWIE B Y RS AR -

and receivable from investment properties during the period.

An analysis of revenue, other revenue and other income/ AEERBA - H A R H I
(expenses), net is as follows: A (AX) FEAMWT

For the six months
ended June 30,

B Z6H308 IL~EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEE) (REEZEET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
(Restated)
(Eat)
Revenue KA
Construction contracts EEAR 4,544,033 5,675,242
Trading business B 5% 3,376,544 3,902,431
Service business AR %75 472,952 557,447
8,393,529 10,135,120
Other revenue Hug A
Government grants XA e B 6,784 1,293
6,784 1,293
Other income/(expenses), net Habl A/ (BX) B8
Net losses on disposal of items of BREYWE BWEK
property, plant and equipment RETE B R EEF 5 (1,045) (26)
Net losses on disposal of other BEEEMEREER
intangible assets =Rt = (76)
Net gain on disposal of an REAHEERER
available-for-sale investment W %8R 58 - 42
Net gains/(losses) on foreign RARINE & [F] K FI| ==
currency forward exchange HER K
contracts and interest rate swaps (Ei8) ‘Fz8 (14,177) 30,107
Others EAh 2,607 8,315
(12,615) 38,362

1 22 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5. BRBADER

AEBZBRBADEN T3 (GEA)
AT EHREH

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
(a) FHUWARBMBHX

(a) Finance income and finance expenses

For the six months
ended June 30,

BZ6H30HL<EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
izt (RS (CREEEET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(Eit)
Finance income on receivables FEW B P SRIE /Y
from customers BRI (80,678) (80,069)
Foreign exchange gains R (272,549) (17,837)
Interest income B YA (204,840) (268,285)
Finance income B UA (558,067) (366,191)
Interest cost recognised in MR EZ 1S
respect of defined benefit R F B AN
obligations 6,965 6,920
Interest expenses on BEMEMX
borrowings 6 23,014 10,390
Bank charges and others RITERRHEAM 5,100 5,525
Finance expenses B 75 B =2 35,079 22,835
Net finance income recognised RIBFRIERE
in profit or loss B S IR A SF 58 (522,988) (343,356)
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 5. BRBIAIER ()

(b) Other items (b) EfIEH

For the six months
ended June 30,

BZ6H30H LB A
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEST) (REEE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥For ARMEF T
(Restated)
(&)
Amortisation 5
- Prepaid land lease payments — A LA ERE 19,484 19,895
- Intangible assets -\ EE 1,591 1,244
- Long-term assets —REEE 1,285 876
22,360 22,015
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment o E BN 23,468 21,854
- Investment properties —REWHE 918 954
24,386 22,808
Impairment losses/(reversal BEEE CRE#RE)
of impairment) on
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 NEMEWFRIE (78,922) (68,876)
- Amounts due from contract — WA REZRFRIEA
customers 36,501 55,870
(42,421) (3,006)
Operating lease charges KEHEER
- Lease of properties —HEME 13,032 15,105
— Lease of other assets -~ HEHEMEE 502 324
13,534 15,429
Cost of construction contracts ZiES R A 3,604,354 4,590,974
Cost of goods sold B EE KA 3,229,683 3,547,640
Cost of services provided P2 £ AR 755 B0 B 7R 348,647 403,867
7,182,684 8,542,481

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEEREIRZROERAT



Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

6. INTEREST EXPENSES ON BORROWINGS 6. BENFERX
An analysis of interest expenses on borrowings is as follows: BENFERZ ST

For the six months
ended June 30,

HZ6H30H1E~EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEE) (REEZER)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
(Restated)
(&)
Interest expenses on borrowings BEMNERE 23,014 10,390
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
R ETTHHIEG A S G iR M et

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

7.

INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
statutory enterprise income tax rate of 25% was applied to
the Group for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
except for two subsidiaries of the Group which were entitled
to the preferential tax rate of 15% (2015: 15%) because they
were recognised as high and new technology enterprises by
the local governments in the PRC.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

FRi&%t

BEPEEEERIER - AEERE
£20165F %2015F6 4301 1E7<{E A &
R BETE R ZEMEHER25% - 1
AEENMRWE Q7 E W+ B 5
BNREARNEMECEMBEEEZS
15% (20154 : 15%) ) B B K Bk
4h o

EANGHDIRBRERTEELEN
fly 5T FE 2R B 0% #11216.5% (2015%F ¢
16.5%) RO R IZH - R E A i [E &Y
ERBFBIEANEE L BRENR
R (el EE) WERMEFTER
IE o

For the six months
ended June 30,

HZ6H30H IL~fE A
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RS (RE&=EET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Current income tax — Mainland China BIERFTIS T — AR B KR 248,975 276,946
Current income tax — Hong Kong BUEAFR 5% — B 1,201 3,199
Current income tax — Others BNEAFTIS R — Aty 1,715 58
Deferred income tax IRIEFTISTR 7,544 32,691
Total tax charge for the period RNEARIFRIE S [H 4258 259,435 312,894

1 26 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 25 sERHM -

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

xR

RESTH RSO BRI

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions) in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as

follows:

AARESIR)

FRiG®L (&)

BARE REKZ BB R A PTEMR
BR (LAE#ERE) fORERERFE
B A A gt A8 R 2 B TR B e B B R
MR R 2 BIRFA AEERIN T

For the six months
ended June 30,

HZE6H30HLAEA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEES) (REEER)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT ARETFT
(Restated)
(ZEit)
Profit before taxation Rk 5 Al 1,063,603 1,250,087
Tax at the statutory tax rate REERERFTENTIE 265,901 312,522
Lower tax rate(s) for specific provinces BEAMNIHTER
or enacted by local authority il 7E BB K = (3,973) (1,786)
Income not subject to tax HARBBA (5,695) (51)
Expenses not deductible for tax D 3,202 2,209
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate RASEERBEAEN
HIAX H 259,435 312,894
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 8. FENBLARZEEEFEA

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT W RER

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is BREKRRBHNTHZEZE20165F6H30
based on the profit for the six months ended June 30, 2016 BIENEABBRE AR L @ERTT
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the BAREF K EARE BT E B AR A I
weighted average number of 4,125,700,000 (six months ended REF¥5804,125,700,0000% (B ZE2015
June 30, 2015: 4,125,700,000) ordinary shares in issue during F6H30R8 L/~ E@ A : 4,125,700,000
the period. f%) 5T & o

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: BRERBABFTETIER

For the six months
ended June 30,

BZ6H30HL<EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RS (CREE&ERT)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Earnings |
Profit attributable to ordinary equity STEERERZFIPTHA
holders of the parent used in the SENES AR T RER
basic earnings per share calculation A AR & A 800,360 937,077

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 8. FENBLARZEEEFEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT NERER (&)
(CONTINUED)

Number of shares
RHEHE
For the six months
ended June 30,

BIZ6H30HILAEA
2016 2015
20165 20154
Thousands Thousands
shares shares
FR FA&
(Restated)
(Eit)
Shares Bz 15
Weighted average number of ordinary FTEESRERZF AN
shares in issue during the period HRNEEITE B
used in the basic earnings hn#EF 5 8K
per share calculation 4,125,700 4,125,700
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue KEBERE 220164 %2015%6 830
during the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. BIEANEAWEEBITABELE S
Y& AR o
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9. M¥ - BRERRZHE
During the six months ended June 30, 2016, the Group # £2016F6H30H £~ @ A @ &
acquired property, plant and equipment with a cost of EBWEME - BWE RFZE KA
approximately RMB122,770,000 (six months ended June 4 B A R #122,770,0007T (& =
30, 2015: RMB107,656,000 (Restated)). No material items of 2015656 H30B IE XA A : AR%
property, plant and equipment were disposed of during the six 107,656,0007T (& i) - # Z=2016
months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. F &2015F6 A30H IE/A@ A « A&
B EEEEREADE  BE KK
#IEE -
10. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 10. A LB ERE
Prepaid land lease payments mainly represent land use right ARt EHIBE BEAREERAL
premiums paid by the Group for land located in Mainland B AR B K Bk Y =t BT S AN Y 1 (5
China. EHES -
11. INVENTORIES 11. FE&
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEST) (J&EET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Goods in transit EEEm 101,796 51,295
Entrusted processing materials ZEMIME 128,636 120,319
Finished goods BURK 374,126 179,716
Completed properties held for sale BEEENE T LY 64,719 101,214
669,277 452,544
Provision for impairment AR (4,040) (4,040)
665,237 448,504
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

12. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT CUSTOMERS 12. EREREFRE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RQHFET) (JE=ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Gross amounts due from contract U A [R& P FIEEE
customers
— Current portion — mEE D 2,376,266 2,947,620
— Non-current portion — ERBE S 2,357,170 2,660,045
4,733,436 5,607,665
Contract costs incurred plus ESEEEERKANE
recognised profits less e aR s AR B FERR I 18
recognised losses to date 84,606,739 80,151,275
Less: Progress billings W EE IR 79,873,303 74,543,610
4,733,436 5,607,665
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AARESIR)

13. EZ K At EWRIA

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEG) (J2=EEt)
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HieF AR T ARMF T
(Restated)
(&)
Bills receivable ERERE 111,284 251,541
Trade receivables 5 EWFIE 4,925,026 4,613,603
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREME (b) (610,267) (647,777)
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W FOE K e E E (a) 4,426,043 4,217,367
Advances to suppliers HERTEN KA 1,952,331 1,755,077
Other receivables H {th fE U kT8 1,587,629 1,998,770
Others Hib 454,772 237,661
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (b) (69,803) (68,727)
1,972,598 2,167,704

Less: Portion classified as non-current 5 : S 8 AIERBIEER
assets o (330,391) (72,676)
Current portion MBS (e) 8,020,581 8,067,472
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

13. EZ R EMEWRIER (&)

(a) FRERT#T

RIFZHZEH RBEEHRNE
2 FE MU IR B B M 3R B A B

date and net of provisions, is as follows: HEHRE ST ¢
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
120164 20155
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEST) (#&2ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Within 3 months 3fE A LA 2,388,516 2,699,262
3 months to 6 months 31E A =61E A 433,722 531,141
6 months to 1 year 6fE A &14 998,658 326,929
Over 1 year 1A E 605,147 660,035
4,426,043 4,217,367

There are no unified standard credit terms granted to
customers of the international engineering contracting
business and trading business. The credit terms granted
to customers of the international engineering contracting
business are negotiated individually on a case-by-case
basis and set forth in the relevant contracts. The credit
terms granted to customers of the trading business are
normally about three to six months. The bills receivable
are generally due within 180 days from the date of
issuance.

RIRABEGREDEBHOEF
VT EERG—IZEEEDR - X THEEK
TRRABEBEPNEREMIZER
BRERBILIHE > LHIINEEE
AR - XTEZFEBEPHEEH—
ROR=ZEA - BEEE KN
F1THHIEFT180 A A RH] -
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AEERT ARG ES P RRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=201656430H 1L/~ & A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (f& S A FERAS) -

13. TRADE AND OTHER
(CONTINUED)

RECEIVABLES

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The movements in provision for impairment of trade

AARESIR)

13. EZ R EMEWRIER (&)

(b) EZRHMERKRERE

B 5 I WA B H b W IRUR

receivables and other receivables are as follows: BERENEHHT
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164F 120154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEST) (4 =ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
At January 1 Mm1A18 716,504 631,845
Impairment losses recognised BERA R EEE 17,412 75,875

Transfer in from amounts due HEAEWERZE P RIA

from contract customers 43,411 62,080
Impairment losses reversed BB H) B RS 1B (96,334) (50,885)
Amount written off as uncollectible WA U B B S 8 (923) (2,411)
680,070 716,504
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables

that are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

13. EZ R EMEWRIER (&)

(c) RBENESEUKARER
L

BAREBTAEREL/BENE S E
WRIA R B R R A R DT T

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2016 2015

R20164F 20154

6 H30H 12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEET) (r8z&5t)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARETFT

(Restated)

(&)

Neither past due nor impaired B 8 HA 7R R Om (B 2,340,536 2,067,395
Less than 3 months past due B HAME A LA A 111,121 111,401
3 months to 6 months past due B EA3E61E A 53,763 42,192
6 months to 1 year past due wHAGME H =146 107,532 118,378
More than 1 year past due BE1E L 134,002 128,452
2,746,954 2,467,818

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

BE R 180 5 7T 2R R0 (B B9 8 Kk TR 3
W EIERBENZ 2D BT -

8 HA (B 6 RORUE Y FE WK IR B 2 298
VYEFPAR RELEAKEABRIY
AR - RIEBELER - ARG
EEEYEB AR AEZEREHRIRK
BRAIZHYD - HEREREHA
Phex T RERRIE LR E R o
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016463308 1F/~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13. EZ NREMEWRIE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(d) The amounts due from the related parties of the (d) FEWAEEPRE S RIE (FFA
Group included in the trade and other receivables EZREMEWRRIE) ST
are analysed as follows: T

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2016 2015

R20164F 20154

6H30H 12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEST) (#&EET)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#¥FT AREFT

(Restated)

(&)

SINOMACH 5 8,177 9,833

Fellow subsidiaries CEN)= VNS 52,776 43,528

These balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and RERERBEER  TEELIE

repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the MERAEBFETFERMERN
major customers of the Group. EEHERE -

(e) As at June 30 2016 and December 31 2015, none of the (e) M20165F6H30H &2015512A4
Group’s borrowings were secured by the Group’s trade B1E AEEHEEERLAEE
receivables. B8 5 R IBERER -
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=2016%6530H 1L/~ & A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 14 BERBEEEBYRZIREEF

PLEDGED DEPOSITS E
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(R (& ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT ARMF T
(Restated)
(&)
Cash and bank balances BeRREEZEEY 24,690,844 25,634,255
Less: Pledged deposits W SR HIFR (572,214) (566,265)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REHIBERARNIRE KX
consolidated statement of REeEEY
financial position 24,118,630 25,067,990
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B BERRREEA
original maturity of over three =& B LA L By 3K
months when acquired TE HATF 3K (4,265,769) (4,035,091)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RGN R R E B
statement of financial position and RemERNAE R
in the consolidated statement REeEEY
of cash flows 19,852,861 21,032,899

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ARBIIEMEBREMES - A
M R BKEE CONEBIRIGH]) K
(BE  EERNEEERE) A&
B BB R A S SN NE R AR IRTT
BARB LMK EMER -

FITRSIRE A RTERF KT
I st 8 « 58 B B AR 17 SR EA
F—AE=EA - RTAEEMEE
BEBERME « WiRARRE I E G
RFEL B « BITEBRABRER
TR B R SR80 BL S B R AT 40
1T o

Interim Report 2016
ZE-AFHRHRE

el



138

Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AARESIR)

15. E5 K E BN

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2016 2015

R20164F 120154

6H30H 12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBERT) (feg&st)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AREFT

(Restated)

(&)

Bills payable [N RE 46,599 198,639
Trade payables B S S IA 11,638,059 12,708,648
11,684,658 12,907,287

Dividends payable JEAT AR B 830,746 10,144
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits EstH e - TEREH 935,295 907,850
Other taxes payable H fh fE AR IE 2,428 85,346
Other payables E b fE T FRIE 2,832,449 3,246,816
Derivative financial instruments TESMIT A 83,319 24,230
Interest payable FEH A 14,026 9,604
Others HAitb 18,328 73,959
16,401,249 17,265,236

Less: Portion classified as current liabilities

(16,382,921)

(17,191,277)

Non-current portion

18,328

73,959

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 15. EZ R HMBESKIE (&)

REZZEH RREEHRNELR
BREZENFERNRESTAT

An ageing analysis of the bills payable and trade payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,

is as follows:
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
20164 R2015%
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) (&)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB¥FT ARETFT
(Restated)
(E3t)
Within 3 months S1E AR 2,757,852 4,941,408
3 months to 6 months 318 A =6fEA 1,423,406 1,256,742
6 months to 1 year 61E A Z=1F 1,608,932 1,378,482
Over 1 year 1A F 5,894,468 5,330,660
11,684,658 12,907,287

The amounts due to the related parties of the Group included

in the trade payables are analysed as follows, which are

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment:

ENANEEEE T HIR GTAESE
NHIE) DIFTWAT - ZERBREE
&~ 2B BIWEEFERY

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2016 2015

20164 20154

6H30H 12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEE) (K| ET)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AR For

(Restated)

(Z|at)

SINOMACH Bl 2,579 2,579
Fellow subsidiaries GEZ NG 640,284 839,178
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

AARESIR)

16. BORROWINGS 16. (B &
As at June 30, 2016 As at December 31, 2015 (Restated)
R201656530H 12015128311 (Fil)
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity (Unaudited) interest rate Maturity (Audited)
ERAE HHA  (GREE) BHH = El)i = (fez=5t)
(%) RMB’000 (%) RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(Eat)
Current RE
Short term bank loans: RESTER:
~ Unsecured — EER 2,65-6.94  2016-2017 127,105 2.2-6.33 2016 158,724
- Secured —BER 2.35-5.07  2016-2017 50,598  4.32-5.07 2016 21,019
Current portion of long RHRITERR
term bank loans: REHH
- Unsecured — ®BIER 1.25 2016-2017 1,354 - - =
- Secured - BER 235 2016-2017 190,789 2.33-2.35 2016 363,412
369,846 543,155
Non-current FRE
Long term bank loans: RERITER
- Unsecured —BER 0.05-6.15  2017-2022 240,900 0.05-6.15  2017-2022 397,078
- Secured —BER 2.35-5.45  2017-2018 33,241 - - -
274,141 397,078
643,987 940,233

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 25 sERHM -

16. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

AARESIR)

16. 58 (&)

Bank loans repayable EEZEBITER
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) (4|5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFoT
(Restated)
(&)
Analysed into: DA
Within one year —FE PR 369,846 543,155
In the second year F-F 159,673 90,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EEFRTF (B
BEMF) 110,888 303,805
Above five years HFELAE 3,580 3,273
643,087 940,233
Notes: BE
(@ As at June 30, 2016, certain borrowings of RMB16,500,000 (@) M2016F6H30R ' ETHEARE

(December 31, 2015: RMB20,000,000) were secured by the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments.

As at June 30, 2016, the Group’s certain borrowings of
RMB237,075,000 (December 31, 2015: RMB362,462,000) were
guaranteed by the Company.

As at June 30, 2016, no borrowing (December 31, 2015:
borrowing of RMB950,000) was secured by the Group’s
restricted cash deposits.

As at June 30, 2016, certain borrowings of RMB1,053,000
(December 31, 2015: RMB1,019,000) were secured by the
Group’s outward documentary bill.

As at June 30, 2016, certain borrowings of RMB20,000,000
(December 31, 2015: RMB Nil) were secured by the Group’s
prepaid land lease payments.

16,500,0007T (2015512 A31H :
AR ¥20,000,00070) B A5 E A )
¥ R LR EMAEN 1S Z0E
{ERIEH -

M2016F6 530 * NEEE TEE
A R #237,075,0007T (2015412 A
318 : AR #362,462,0007T) H A&
ANAMEER -

20166 H30R ' MEMEE (2015
F12A31H : AR #950,0007T H &
F) BAEBEZRHRESFRIEAK
o

R2016F6A30H * & FTEEARK
1,053,0007T (2015F12A31H : AR
#1,019,000 T K& ) AL E A H
HREE R o

201656 H30H » HTEEARE
20,000,0007T (2015412 4318 :
ARBZ L) AAEEEMNLAE
SKIBIERIRA -
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

AARESIR)

17. HttERBEE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
20164F R2015%F
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REHFET) (#&E5T)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE
Listed equity investments, at fair value ERERE - RARE
Hong Kong B 2,430 2,625
Shanghai & 7,164 7,227
9,594 9,852
Unlisted equity investments, at cost I ETRERE - AR 556,383 545,955
565,977 555,807
18. ISSUED CAPITAL 18. ERTHRA
As at As at
June 30, December 31
2016 2015
72016 R2015%F
F6A30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RS (JE|ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid BRI ENE B
Domestic shares of RMB1.00 each FRARE.00TTHRNE K 3,217,430 3,217,430
H shares of RMB1.00 each FIRAR1.007TAIHAR 908,270 908,270
4,125,700 4,125,700

There was no movement of issued capital during the six
months ended June 30, 2016 and the year ended December

31, 2015.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

19.

20.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 25 sERHM -

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior periods are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 98 to
99 of the financial statements.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL

As set out in note 24(c), on May 31, 2016, the Group
acquired the 100% equity interest in China National Complete
Engineering Corporation at a total cash consideration of
RMB532,678,100. The Company and China National Complete
Engineering Corporation are under the common control of
SINOMACH both before and after the acquisition, and such
controls are not transitory. Thus, the acquisition is considered
to be business combination under common control. The
acquisition date is May 31, 2016, which is determined by the
date of equity transfer.

19.

20.

AARESIR)

f#tE
NS B PR HIR BB A MR O R £

WA BHERZBENZT) -

B —#2 6T %K a 6

B 5E24(c)FT it - 7201645 H31
H AEBKEFBEKEIEZBERA
AIAI100% R - BEENRERARKE
532,678,1007T ° AN A &) # B i &
Ti2BR A A 72 W B Al 18 25 5 7O B 4
BIR —4E 6T - B IE RN I A
By o Bt - ZWEEIRWESE BRE—IE
Fl TR RS O o WkE B HI/R2016%F
5A318 - JhiRkiERS B HMTE -
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
RETTH G A S SRR M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

N

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

20. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON

China

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the consolidated assets and liabilities
of China National Complete Engineering Corporation and its

AARESIR)

20. B —EZFITEBEH (F)

PEXEIRARQAMEFARRYE
FHNAHEERABRAEK L BME

subsidiaries as at the acquisition date and the comparative SR -
financial figures were as follows:
As at As at
May 31, December 31,
2016 2015
i »n
2016%F5H31H 2015412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB¥FT ARETFT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N RE 30,192 31,276
Intangible assets mEEE 2 2
Investment in an associate HEE AN TIHIRE 1,462 1,462
Non-current trade and other receivables JEREIE 5 & H b fEUL 70 TB 2,351 2,353
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 2,180 2,408
Inventories FE 376,882 194,415
Current trade and other receivables MENE 5 M E b eI 668,978 548,002
Restricted deposits SR SIRES N 281,084 252,130
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEEY 602,986 688,285
Borrowings R (77,599) (114,880)
Receipts in advance TEM IR (997,647) (718,228)
Current trade and other payables MENE 5 K E e IR (375,973) (436,734)
Current defined benefit obligations MENERE X a5 15 - (2,970)
Tax payable FE TS TE (58,874) (53,312)
Non-current defined benefit obligations ERERETmEE (24,170) (24,170)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAE E (25,694) (25,009)
Total identifiable net assets at carrying REREE 2 5B A 5
amounts REEMARE 406,160 345,025
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR = (10,977)
Surplus of consideration over net KREREEREFED
asset carrying value el 3 137,495
Satisfied by cash AR & S A+ 532,678

Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

21. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 21, REBEZH
(a) As lessor (a) EHBEHAA
The Group leases its investment properties under AEEREBECEHELZHEEHR
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for WEME  BZEHBANT—Z2H
terms ranging from 1 to 5 years. The terms of the leases FoHEBKRR—BRTERBLX
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits NRFE RATAREERTR
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the EHREMES -

then prevailing market conditions.

At June 30, 2016, the Group had total future minimum 2016566 A30R  ANEE IR &

lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases EBEPE MBI EEE

with its tenants falling due as follows: FIBEM R R &EE S @D

T

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2016 2015

20164 20154

6H30H 12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REERT) (f&=ET)

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT

(Restated)

(&)

Within one year —F LA 5,618 11,813
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B -FEZFRHF

(BIEERMF) 3,510 6,532

Over five years AFE - 282

9,128 18,627
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AEERT ARG ES P RRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

21. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and office
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
3 years.

At June 30 2016, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

21.

REHERH ()

(b) ERFABEA

\

AEERBEEHELHARS
EXCL

THRRENERMARE - ZF
MENZERMNF—E=F -

A2016%6 A30R @ NEE B IE
TR HEECEHEDBEMNER
REEAL@BEMT

As at As at

June 30, December 31,

2016 2015

20165 20154

6 H30H 12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEET) (fez&5t)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT AREFT

(Restated)

(Eih)

Within one year —F A 10,818 16,244
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B -FEZFRHF

(BIEERMEF) 2,716 2,404

13,534 18,648

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

22. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
21(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

22, &

B | SCBTRE21 (b) 5 it A 45 2 FH &R I
Iy REERRERAREFATER
FAHE

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
120164 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(R&EE) (Fz&st)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETFT
(Restated)
(&)
Contracted, but not provided for: EEEEES T
Land and buildings T RAEF 731,901 732,551
Capital contributions BRI 600,743 988,975
1,332,644 1,721,526
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
R ETTHHIEG A S G iR M et

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 23. EEE
The Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group are EEEEBBES  RXRAAIRAKEH
defendants in certain lawsuits as well as the named parties in HETHB AR ARELFATHWE
other proceedings arising in the normal course of business. REEMEEREFOWEETT - A
While the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or other BRIREEEZ S A EM - ik
proceedings cannot be determined at present, the directors of HMZZBRTFHNER  AAREEME
the Company believe that any resulting liabilities will not have EEMBESIBNEETEHASE
a material adverse impact on the financial position, liquidity, RS RN - MBI E SR EEEE
or operating results of the Group. EBBRTFIFE o
24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24. BB RS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) BzZEYIEHmEE A ELH F il iy
these financial statements, the Group had the following RN+ A5 B 5N HA A B g Bt
transactions with related parties during the period: BETIUNTRS -
(b) In the opinion of the Directors, the transactions below (b) EFRA - TIRGTIRAEE
were conducted in the ordinary course of business of —BEBBEPRBEAREEEA
the Group and are in accordance with the terms agreed A B 77 3 TE AR RETT ¢

between the Group and its related parties:

For the six months
ended June 30,

HZ6H30H1E~EA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEFET) (REEZEET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#¥FT AR For
(Restated)
(&)
Receipt of engineering services BEXRER TS H
and products from TR R Em
— Fellow subsidiaries — R XK B R A 90,946 266,677
Provision of engineering services M RAE S RETRRRE
and products to M EE
— SINOMACH — B 337,198 85,986
Provision of integrated services to M RAE T REERE R
— SINOMACH — B 236 -
- Fellow subsidiaries — R RKEAF] 41,898 24,586
Net deposit placed with/ RTINS ERTER
(withdrawn from) (RREER) 558
- A fellow subsidiary ——RKERMEAA (966,912) 933,422
Interest income received from )R %1 & 77 AR B 7 2O
- A fellow subsidiary ——RKERMEAA 29,693 20,281

148 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Err PR S OB BRI

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:

24. BB LR5 (&)

(c) EEEAMETS VA RERER

As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
R20164F 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEET) (J&|ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
()
Cash deposits placed with SN RSNk X E
— A fellow subsidiary — —RKRARMBLRAE 1,425,296 2,392,208
Trade and other receivables RN TAR T HIE 5 K&
due from H {th fE Y 5k I8
— SINOMACH — [ 8,177 9,833
- Fellow subsidiaries — REKMEAE 52,776 43,528
Receipts in advance from B T 71 75 W8 T8 R IR
— SINOMACH — B 239,521 189,700
— Fellow subsidiaries — RIRKBR A 32,291 18,824
Trade and other payables RIS T3S HFOE S R
due to H i 5K
— SINOMACH — ik 2,579 2,579
- Fellow subsidiaries — RIRNBAF] 640,284 839,178
Prepayments to SN ZIE= g o= e
— Fellow subsidiaries — RIRKBR A 37,951 23,844

Note:

Except for the balances of cash deposits placed with a fellow

subsidiary which accrue interest at relevant market rates, the

balances due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

As disclosed in note 20, the Group acquired the 100%
interest in China National Complete Engineering Corporation

from SINOMACH. This acquisition also consitituted a

connected transaction under Hong Kong Listing rules.

Hat

BN —RKERWEBLQRNERSFRERR
MRS M R E BN - U BT #O A5 AR
REER RS AWERTERS -

IR EE20FT IR ER - A M EEKE T+
Bl E T2 BR A R100%ME s o thIKiE
TMERER LMRAIFMRENRER S
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

REE

it P HI A S S IS Rk MaE

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of

(e)

the Group:

AARESIR)

24. BEEA RS (48)

(d) XEEXEZEBASHHMH

For the six months
ended June 30,

HZ6A30HEAREA
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REHFET) (REEERT)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Short term employee benefits R E B ER 11,002 4,724
Post-employment benefits BB 2 1R A 243 229
Total compensation paid to MEZERAESNH
key management personnel e b 11,245 4,953
Related party guarantee: (e) BAEESIER :
As at As at
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
20165 20154
6H30H 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEFE) (fe&ET)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Outstanding guarantee to: i BRE SNELR
- A fellow subsidiary - —XRARMNBAFA - 1,745

1 50 China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REBETH A AS I R RME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=2016%6530H 1L/~ & A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

June 30, 2016

25. RERIETNEMTH

BHEER T AR R E HRA AR E(E L

T
Available-
for-sale
financial Loans and
assets receivables Total
AHHE BERR
TREE EWHE Mt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R2016%F6H30H AREFT AREFT AR¥FRT
Other non-current assets HibIERENEE 565,977 - 565,977
Amounts due from contract customers JEW & REFRIE - 4,733,436 4,733,436
Financial assets included in trade and FTAE S R E AR

other receivables PEMSREE - 6,398,641 6,398,641
Restricted deposits PR F 77 3K - 572,214 572,214
Time deposits with original maturity FIAEE A BB =EA

over three months ) EBTE R - 4,265,769 4,265,769
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY - 19,852,861 19,852,861

565,977 35,822,921 36,388,898
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
RETTH G A S SRR M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

N

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

AARESIR)

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 25. ZEFBITNEMITE ()
(CONTINUED)
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or liabilities at
loss - held amortised
for trading cost Total
BRAREY
ZRBHTE  REBHAK
Hemas SR Y
- REEE ERmEH et
June 30, 2016 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2016565308 ARMFT AR¥FT AR¥ETFT
Financial liabilities included in trade 5t AE 5 K& H A B AR
and other payables TRIAE - 14,531,133 14,531,133
Derivative financial instruments T AE 2 K E AR B
included in trade and other payables ~ $T4£& @ T A 83,319 - 83,319
Interest-bearing bank and FTRRITREMEE
other borrowings - 643,987 643,987
83,319 15,175,120 15,258,439

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk 25 sERHM -

Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

REFTH RSO B RRMEE

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » #£201646 A30H IE/~{E A

AARESIR)

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 25. EFEITNEMIT A ()
(CONTINUED)
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss — held financial Loans and
for trading assets  receivables Total
BAREY
FiRBmT 2
HWemEE AL E XK
- H#EEE TREE JiE W KA st
December 31, 2015 (Restated) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2015512 H318 (Zit) ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Other non-current assets Hi3EREEE - 555,807 - 555,807
Amounts due from contract FEW A REFZIE
customers = = 5,607,665 5,607,665
Financial assets included in trade 5+ A 5 K& H i fE U
and other receivables TENERMEE 414 - 6,311,981 6,312,395
Restricted deposits X HIFR - - 566,265 566,265
Time deposits with original [RIGEIEA A BB
maturity over three months = BRI EHEFER - - 4,035,091 4,035,091
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREZED - - 21,032,899 21,032,899
414 555,807 37,553,901 38,110,122

Interim Report 2016
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

AARESIR)

25. RERIESSNEMTA (&)

(CONTINUED)
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through Financial
profit or liabilities at
loss — held amortised
for trading cost Total
BAREL
FRBE@IE  REEKE
HeRBE 51| B #9
—HEEE CREE st
December 31, 2015 (Restated) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2015612 A31 8 (Fit) ARETFT ARETT ARETT
Financial liabilities included in trade 5t AE 5 & H B FUAR
and other payables SMERE - 16,163,707 16,163,707
Derivative financial instruments T AE 2 K E AR B
included in trade and other payables ~ #T4& g T A 80,765 = 80,765
Interest-bearing bank and TSR REMBEE
other borrowings = 940,233 940,233
80,765 17,108,940 17,184,705

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
FEIEMRE IRROERA S



Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

REETPEEAS O IR RMEE
For the six months ended June 30, 2016 ¢ & Z=2016%6530H 1L/~ & A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

26. WBEBREERQAE

VALUES

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying values of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period across the two levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

The Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value as
at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are measured
under level 1 or level 2.

As at June 30, 2016
1201656 830H

Fair value measurement using

RANTHENARETE

(@) AAAEIRNESEMTA

TREJINAAEBHENEHMTAR
BERREBRTE RS EANFTHR
[ERTA: BEIMATNAAEE
AMMEBRRNERE SEBITH
MAnBEEBRESZAAETEM
FEEENSEERBALZEER -

REEM2016F6 H30H Kk20155F12
AB1BRARBEIIEN @ T AESE
FIRKE2RETE -
As at December 31, 2015 (Restated)
2015F 12318 (Eit)
Fair value measurement using

RRAATERNAABHE

Quoted Quoted
prices Significant prices  Significant
in active observable in active  observable
markets inputs markets inputs
(Level 1)  (Level 2) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Total
REBME BATEE WEEMS EATHE
HRE BWAE R (E HAE
(E14%) (5E28%) B3t (B14) (528) 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ANEBTFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale STARMIE R EE
investments included M ER &
in other non-current
assets 9,594 - 9,594 9,852 - 9,852
Derivative financial FABZREMEK
instruments included FIERATE
in trade and other *MIA
receivables
- Foreign currency — RHINER R
forward exchange
contracts - - - - 414 414

Interim Report 2016
ZE-AFHRHRE

113



Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
REETTHHAG RS RIS R R M

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (Bk %28 sERHS) -

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

AARESIR)

VALUES (CONTINUED)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value

26. UAMEERARE (F)

(@) UL2AREIRNEMT A (&)

(continued)
As at June 30, 2016 As at December 31, 2015 (Restated)
201656 A30H #2015F 12310 (Eitt)
Fair value measurement using Fair value measurement using
RRAUTHENAAENE RANTEENAREFE
Quoted Quoted
prices Significant prices  Significant
in active observable in active  observable
markets inputs markets inputs
(Level 1)  (Level 2) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Total
REBME EATHEER WEEMS EATHE
HRE WAE HRE BAE
(E147) (5E28%) g (FER) (5288) 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000
AEEFE AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Liabilities =1
Derivative financial FAE S RHMERN
instruments FENITES R
included in trade and TA
other payables
- Foreign currency —RESNES R
forward exchange
contracts - 83,319 83,319 - 80,752 80,752
- Interest rate swaps — FlR3a ER - - - - 13 13
- Other derivative — HtbfT4

financial instruments

156 FEIEMRE IRROERA S
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Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

REFTH RSO B RRMEE

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » & 22016563308 1-7~1@8 A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& SAFERASN © AARELIR)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26. EKREERANE (&)

VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
which were stated at cost or amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at December
31, 2015 and as at June 30, 2016 except the following:

(b) FEAAEIRNEBMIAN
DRE

®2015412 A31H &201646 A308 °
IR B4R B AR S SE A AR DI AR Y &
TEMEOEEEAABTRENE
2 PATRBRSD -

As at
As at December 31, 2015
June 30, 2016 (Restated)
20154124318
201656 A30H (Eut)
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BREE ARE REE ArAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFTT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Amounts due from & REFRIE
contract customers 4,733,436 4,631,599 5,607,665 5,444,154
Long-term borrowings RAEEE 466,284 459,144 760,490 746,079

Interim Report 2016
ZE-AFHRHRE

157



158

Notes to the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AEERT ARG ES P RRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2016 » ;2201646 A30H IE/~{E A

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise stated) (& S A FERASN © AAREELIR)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (CONTINUED)

(c) Estimation of fair values
(1) Receivables and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of the
future cash flows discounted at the market interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

(2) Derivatives

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts are
measured by discounting the difference between
the contractual forward price and the current market
forward price. The fair value of interest rate swaps
is obtained using discounted cash flow models. The
Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with strong credit ratings. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency
contracts and interest rate swaps, are measured
using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations.
The models incorporate various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties,
foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest
rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps are the
same as their fair values.

27. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

There was no material subsequent event subsequent to June
30, 2016.

28. APPROVAL OF INTERIM CONDENSED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These interim condensed financial statements of the Company
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on August 30, 2016.

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
PEEEREIRZROERAT

26. UAMEERARE (F)

(c)

DREGE

(1)

(2)

BURREREER

AAEBAR/RRIRERE
BB E PR THISH RFR
HIR(E

fTET A

EHINESRETRARE
HIE 1% B3R By T 35 R R (E AR
ZEBE - FXIEHH A
REERTRASRERA
BE - AEBETRHTFE
TTEeMIARS 2
RERIREENSBK
BoTESRIA (BREE
HEBERAEMNEREHE
[) BB UEME B Rz
HRA WG ERN  ZRE
FTE - RERARBZEAD
SERGARE R 5H
FEEEE SMNERH  E
HIRRMA R AR - BHE
% aRMA RIS R K
EEEEAAEMER -

27. HEEE

RE B R20165F6 A30H & I £ (F {7
EARHBEE -

28. #t/ERHAG R BT S R &R

KX &) R AR HE RS RR B 7S iR 3R B 102016
FEAB0REEESHEERIFHET)E o



Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms

“Audit Committee”
[BFrZE=

“Board”

=3

“CG Code”

[EERTA

“China United”

[FEEA

“China Machinery Industrial”

[k

“Company”, “our

Company”, or “CMEC”

[RAE] -~ [ARA]
[P B T A2

“China Machinery R&D”

[ B |

“CMEC New Energy”

[ FTEEIR |

E 2 N B Al i 58

the audit committee of the Company
EN/NCIE: S

the board of directors of the Company
KRBEEG

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ETRRI SR 4R 2 R E AT R

China United Engineering Corporation* (F BEi& Ti2/2F]), an enterprise
established in the PRC on January 21, 1984 and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of SINOMACH, the connected person of the Company and
directly holds approximately 0.78% of the issued share capital of the
Company

FEEE TIRAR - —RM1984F1 A21BER R I - WARKA
2EMBRAR  ARFIWAEATBEEEFRERNRRIEBITRA4L0.78%

China Machinery Industrial Products Co, Ltd* (f R EEEEEEFRET
A 7\]), a company incorporated in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company

FREEREBEREERETEAF  —KAPBGEMAZA AR L ARAF]E
BB AR

China Machinery Engineering Corporation* (7R BI#4m =5 & T2 AR
A 7)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability whose H
Shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

PRI EIEROEAERAT - EREFEMA I AR - EHRREAFT
FiR T

China Machinery International Engineering Design & Research
Institute Co., Ltd. (FHEIR TR BREMTLF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
PHRBERTREFHARGEEREETLE - —KRPBEEMA AR AR
RAZEAWE A

China National Guo Lian Development New Energy (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.* (&
BB S5 #TRE R B2 R B R A 7)), a joint venture company owned as to 50%
and 50% by the Company and Wuxi Guolian Environmental Energy Group
Co., Ltd.* (5 B IRRAEREBE B R A TF)
hREBESNERERERAR  AARRERGRBIRREREEER
RNADBIFFES0% R ERE E AT
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Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms

“CNCEC”

[AE]

“Core Sectors”

RSeS|

“Corresponding Period in 2015”
[20154 [F HA

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Domestic Shares”

[RE&E K]

“EasyTrade”

[ A

[E—

“EPG”

[EPC]

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

FEMMREIRRAERAT

China National Complete Engineering Corporation* (FEKXE TEER
A 7)), a corporation established in the PRC on September 5, 1985 and
wholly-owned by SINOMACH

FEREIRBRAA  —RN1985FIASAEFR B A AR - B E#
Ex-¢7 ¥

the core sectors of our International Engineering Contracting Business
which are the power sector, transportation sector and telecommunications
sector
BMBR IRRABREBNZOITERENERITE  RBERTERETE
AT

the six months ended June 30, 2015
B ZE2015F6 H30H L/ {E A

the director(s) of our Company

ZAUNCTF: 2

ordinary shares in our capital, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
which are subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi
BMRAF O EBR - BREBERARKE1.00T - TUARBRBRAZE

the first integrated foreign trade platform in Wuxi, which was developed
by Wuxi EasyTrade Supply Chain Service Co., Ltd. ({E$5 12 i (it e 58 iR
#BBRAT]), a Chinese company jointly established by China Machinery

Easy Trade Co., Ltd. (B EBBEEIEERAR])

HEpt ERREEREARAR (HPREHRBSBEIREARARHES
B BAERRERARERKZNFTEAR) AENESbE S @ENEZ
RERBFEE

a common form of contracting arrangement whereby the contractor
is commissioned by the project owner to carry out such project work
as design, procurement, construction and trial operations, or any
combination of the above, either through the contractor’s own labor or by
subcontracting part or all of the project work, and be responsible for the
quality, safety, timely delivery and cost of the project

EETHNERER  ABHRIBEXFETNELETRT  HE  BIR
ALEFERILE  EMLANES (BEREBBAEBBATNAERSE
HoABAEE IE)  THIREWNEE - 2 THEKNAEER



Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms

“GE”

BRER]

“Global Offering”

[2REE]

“Group” or “our Group”,
“we” or “us”

(SR ] - [ASME ) e 3]

“H Share(s)”

[HAZ ]

IKHK$7!

[T

“INED(s)”
[ IEHITES ]

“International Engineering
Contracting Business”

[BIFR Ti2 B &%)

“Jikan Research Institute”

[ 14 Db |

“JYP”
REpA

E 2 N B Al i 58

General Electric Company, a company incorporated in the United States,
whose principal activities include, among others, engineering and power
generation services

WAERAA —KREEFMAZOHRF - EELEKOE (AR EE)
ITREKEERS

the offering by the Company of 825,700,000 H Shares for subscription
by the public in Hong Kong and placing with professional and institutional
investors outside the United Stated in December 2012
ANARF20124612 A 12 23 £825,700,00008HAR - BB QA RRME « WL
ETRBERINNERREIBIREE

the Company and, except where the context otherwise requires, all its
subsidiaries
RRARINREFFENRBAR (BRXESAHENN)

overseas listed foreign shares in our ordinary share capital with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are listed on the Stock Exchange and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars

BAEBRATRREIN EHINER - BREEARK1.000T  RERMA L
M UBTREREE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region
BT BARIITHRREEEY

the independent non-executive Director(s)

BIUIFRITES

the international engineering contracting business conducted by our
Group with a primary focus on EPC projects

MASEFE - WAEPCHEE REHNBERE TRABEK

China Jikan Research Institute of Engineering Investigations and Design
Co., Ltd.* (#ih T MR E Il B R A R]), a company incorporated in
the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BRI RORRFARAEEARLAF - —FKRPEEMKZOREL RARA R
2 EMBAAE

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of the Japan
HE - BREEES
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Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms

K
[ TR

W
[T

“Listing Rules”

[ Em#RAl]

“Model Code”

[P A ]

“MW?

[JEE]

“non-Core Sectors’

[FERLTTEE]

“OFAC”
[SNEEEES S

“Period”
[ ZEAfE

“PRC” or “China”

[P E

“Prospectus”

B ETE

"PPP”
[PPPJ

China Machinery Engineering Corporation

FEMMREIRRAERAT

unit of electric potential, kilovolt. 1kV=1,000 volts

BEEM TR o 1TR=1,0000R%F

unit of energy, kilowatt. 1 kW = 1,000 watts
BEREMN T E » 1FE =1,000F4F

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
PR PreE 5 E AR B (B TRHERT ~ M sk AR 5 820

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LETRBIM ST FrE 2 LT BITAEFTEITESF R HWIRETE

unit of energy, megawatt. TMW=1,000kW. The installed capacity of power
plants is generally expressed in MW
BEIREAIIKEL « 1JKF=1,000T F - HEMERTEREUNIKRERTR

any sectors that do not fall within the Core Sectors of our International
Engineering Contracting Business
EA I IEBR R MR TRRABEBROITENITE

the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the US Department of the Treasury
EEFBHBETIINNEEE D

the six months ended June 30, 2016
HZE2016%F6 A308 1L/~ A

The People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report
only, Hong Kong Special Administration Region of the PRC, the Macau
Special Administration Region of the PRC and Taiwan

PEARANE - ERAHREMNE - TRETEEBFINTHRE - S BEIRM
FrRIFTH R kA&

the prospectus of the Company dated December 11, 2012
RNARIBEIA2012F12 A11BHBRER

Public-Private Partnership

Bt & EARNA RN



“RMB” or “Renminbi”

[AR¥]

“Service Business”

[ AR5 575 ]

“SFO”

[#& 7= MR B

“Share(s)”

[zt ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ R ]

“SINOMACH”

[ B ]

“Sinosure”

[REIER]

“SSF”
(HRESEES ]

“Stock Exchange”

[ B <2 P

“Supervisor(s)”

(B2

Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms

E 2 N B Al i 58

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - REDAEREH

the design consulting services, logistics services, exhibition services,
tendering agency services, export-import agency services and other
services conducted by the Group

AEEFRRENRTDARE - WRRE - RERS  BERERS - &40
IR AR Ko H b AR 75

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

BEEDIBST1EE S MRS (B TEHERT - s A I e k)

share(s) in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, including our Domestic Shares and H Shares
RABBAFFHREEAREL.00TTAKGD - BIERNE R MHE

holder(s) of our Share(s)
BMWNROEE A

China National Machinery Industry Corporation* (FFB#4H T2 £ E AR
A \]), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC on May 21,1988,
our controlling shareholder
BAERRRPE#E T XERARA
R E BB T3

» —EKMR1988F5 21 HEH

China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation (FEH D{ERRE AT, a
policy-oriented insurance company specializing in export credit insurance
in the PRC and an independent third party

PEEOGEARBAR  —KEFEELH A ERRBOBERERRQFM
WYE=F

National Council for Social Security Fund of the PRC
PEPEMHEREECESSE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBERHAAR AT

one (or all) of our Company’s supervisors

ARFN—% (R2f) BF
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Definitions and Glossary of Technical Terms

“Trading Business”

[B 5%
“United States” or “U.S.”
[EH ]

“US dollars” or “US$”
E

wop
[% ]

*

the international and domestic trading business conducted by our Group

AEBETHBERNBENE HEK

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction
EFBERE HEL B NI EREEEMNAHE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
x50 EEREEEY

per cent
Bk

Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or * BREARRERBABNEGERXER

entity or vice versa and is provided for identification purposes only. 150 EHEER -

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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LEGAL NAME OF THE COMPANY

MR A TR BR AR

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

China Machinery Engineering Corporation*

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Chun (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zhian
Mr. YU Benli
Mr. ZHANG Fusheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Li

Ms. LIU Hongyu

Mr. FANG Yongzhong
Mr. WU Tak Lung

SUPERVISORS

Mr. QUAN Huagiang (Chairman)
(Shareholder representative supervisor)

Mr. QIAN Xiangdong (Shareholder representative supervisor)

Mr. BAI Ming (Staff representative supervisor)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHOU Yamin
Ms. TSANG Fung Chu

*  For Identification Purposes Only
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Corporate Information

NEER

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. ZHANG Chun
Mr. ZHOU Yamin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Li (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zhian
Ms. LIU Hongyu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Ms. LIU Hongyu
Mr. FANG Yongzhong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. FANG Yongzhong (Chairman)

Mr. WANG Zhian
Mr. LIU Li

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Bai (Chairman)
Mr. ZHANG Chun

Mr. YU Benli

Mr. LIU Li

OPERATION AND RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHANG Chun (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zhian

Mr. ZHANG Fusheng

Mr. FANG Yongzhong

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

International Auditors
Ernst & Young

PRC Auditors

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership)

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Development Bank

The Export — Import Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Bank of China

CITIC Bank

China Merchants Bank (Beijing Branch)

Bank of Communications (Beijing Dongdan Sub-branch)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEAD
OFFICE IN THE PRC

No. 178 Guang’anmenwai Street
Beijing, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 804, 8/F, Tower 1
South Sea Centre

75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Corporate Information

NEER

B AR

BIRR % 2D
KR AN E TSP

o B 12 2L AP
OKERSTMELH (FHREBER)

FEARRLT

BIZK F B ERTT

R M ERTT

P T RRTT

REIERTT

RISERTT

HBERTT (ERDTT)
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Corporate Information

NEER

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Laws
Shearman & Sterling

As to PRC Laws
Tian Yuan Law Firm

STOCK CODE
01829
INVESTOR INQUIRIES

Investor Hotline: 86 10 6331 2262
Fax No: 86 10 6332 1086

COMPANY 'S WEBSITE

www.cmec.com

China Machinery Engineering Corporation
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